
 

Page 1 of 295 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, OCTOBER 07, 2019 

7:00 PM AT CITY HALL 

 

 
 
Call to Order by the Mayor 

Roll Call 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Regular Meeting of September 16, 2019. 

Agenda Revisions 

Old Business 

2. Pass Ordinance #2954, amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of 
Ordinances relative to 48-hour parking on city streets, upon its third & final consideration. 

3. Pass Ordinance #2955, amending Section 26-118 of the Code of Ordinances by removing property 
located in the vicinity of 1700-2000 Union Road from the A-1, Agricultural District, and placing the 
same in the R-1, Residence District, upon its second consideration. 

4. Pass Ordinance #2956, amending Chapter 19, Streets and Sidewalks, of the Code of Ordinances 
relative to monument mailboxes, upon its second consideration. 

New Business 

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate 
discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 

5. Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of September 16, 2019 relative to the following 
items: 
a) Wheat Pasting Murals in Cedar Falls by Fortepan Iowa.  
b) Bills & Payroll. 

6. Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of August 2019. 

7. Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses:  
a) Murphy USA, 518 Brandilynn Boulevard, Class C beer - renewal. 
b) Blue Room, 201 Main Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 
c) Chapala 2, 1704 West 1st Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 
d) Peppers Grill & Sports Pub, 620 East 18th Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 
e) SingleSpeed Brewing Co., 128 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
f) Casey's General Store, 601 Main Street, Class E liquor - renewal. 
g) Fareway Store, 214 North Magnolia Drive, Class E liquor - renewal. 
h) Hampton Inn & Suites, 101 West 1st Street, Class C beer & Class B wine - new. 

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without 
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered 
separately.) 

8. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Title VI Non-Discrimination Agreement with the 
Iowa Department of Transportation (IDOT), approving and authorizing execution of the United States 

1



 

Page 2 of 295 

Department of Transportation (USDOT) Standard Title VI/Non-Discrimination Assurances, and 
designating a Title VI and ADA (Americans with Disabilities Act) Coordinator for the City of Cedar 
Falls relative to receiving federal funding through the Iowa Department of Transportation (IDOT). 

9. Resolution levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to mow and clear vegetation on 
the property located at 2040 Waterloo Road. 

10. Resolution levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to mow and clear vegetation on 
the property located at 929 Newman Avenue. 

11. Resolution approving and adopting a rate of $3.89 per $1,000 taxable value for the Downtown Cedar 
Falls Self-Supported Municipal Improvement District (SSMID) for FY21. 

12. Resolution approving and authorizing the expenditure of funds to upgrade the City's data backup and 
recovery system. 

13. Resolution approving and authorizing the expenditure of funds for the purchase and installation of 
cameras and lighting in the Downtown area. 

14. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Cooperative Agreement for Use of Swimming 
Pools with the Cedar Falls Community School District. 

15. Resolution approving and authorizing the expenditure of funds for the purchase of a bio solids 
transport unit. 

16. Resolution approving six Claims for Non-Residential Relocation Assistance Reimbursement, in 
conjunction with the West 1st Street Reconstruction Project. 

17. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement to Purchase Parking Meter 
Equipment and Related Services with IPS Group, Inc., in conjunction with the implementation of 
recommendations from the Downtown and College Hill parking studies. 

18. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a License Agreement with Aureon Network 
Services relative to installing a fiber optic telecommunications system in the West 12th Street & 
South Division Street right-of-way. 

19. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a License Agreement with Aureon Network 
Services relative to installing a fiber optic telecommunications system in the Magnolia Drive right-of-
way. 

20. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Storm Water Maintenance and Repair 
Agreement with CF Gateway Business Park, Inc. relative to a post-construction stormwater 
management plan for property located at the northeast corner of Hudson Road and West Ridgeway 
Avenue. 

21. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Storm Water Maintenance and Repair 
Agreement with James V. Sands relative to a post-construction stormwater management plan for Lot 
6 of Prairie Springs U.M.C. Minor Plat. 

22. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Storm Water Maintenance and Repair 
Agreement with Tjaden Properties, L.L.C. relative to a post-construction stormwater management 
plan for Lot 16 and Tract "B", West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase IV. 

23. Resolution approving a Central Business District Overlay Zoning District site plan for façade 
improvements at 100 East 2nd Street. 

24. Resolution approving a Central Business District Overlay Zoning District site plan for façade 
improvements at 202 Main Street. 

25. Resolution approving a Central Business District Overlay Zoning District site plan for a 
commercial/residential mixed use redevelopment and façade improvements at 203/205 Main Street. 

2



 

Page 3 of 295 

26. Resolution approving final occupancy of the Holiday Inn & Bien Venu Event Center prior to the 
acceptance of the public improvements in Gateway Business Park at Cedar Falls I. 

27. Resolution setting November 4, 2019 as the date of public hearing on the City's 2018-2019 
Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER) for the Community Development 
Block Grant Program. 

28. Resolution setting October 21, 2019 as the date of public hearing on a proposed ordinance granting 
a partial property tax exemption to Broadstone BCI Iowa, LLC for construction of an industrial 
warehouse and production facility at 2900 Capital Way. 

Ordinances 

29. Pass an ordinance amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances 
relative to establishing a 35 miles per hour speed limit on Ridgeway Avenue from Hudson Road east 
to Iowa Highway 58, upon its first consideration. 

Allow Bills and Payroll 

30. Allow Bills and Payroll of October 7, 2019. 

City Council Referrals 

City Council Updates 

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics germane to City 

business.) 

Adjournment 

  

3



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, SEPTEMBER 16, 2019 

REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
MAYOR JAMES P. BROWN PRESIDING 

  
The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, 
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member 
thereof, in the City Hall at Cedar Falls, Iowa, at 7:00 P.M. on the above date. 
Members present: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse (via phone), Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, 
Green. Absent: None. 

 
52493 - It was moved by Green and seconded by Miller that the minutes of the Regular 

Meeting of September 3, 2019 be approved as presented and ordered of record. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
Mayor Brown read a proclamation declaring October 7-13, 2019 as Earth 
Science Week and BMC Aggregates Geologist Sherman Lundy and UNI Student 
Faith Luce commented. The ‘Sunday at the Quarry’ event will be held October 
6th from 11AM-4PM at the BMC Aggregates’ Morgan Quarry. 
 
Mayor Brown read a proclamation declaring September 17-23, 2019 as 
Constitution Week and Barb Gregersen, member of the Cedar Falls Chapter of 
the Daughters of the American Revolution (DAR), spoke briefly and introduced 
fellow members Jeverna Mulligan and Deborah Crawford. 

 
52494 -  Mayor Brown announced that in accordance with the public notice of September 

6, 2019, this was the time and place for a public hearing on a proposed 
amendment to the Future Land Use Map by changing the designation from 
Greenways/Floodplain and Neighborhood Commercial/Mixed Use to Low Density 
Residential for property located in the vicinity of 1700-2000 Union Road. It was 
then moved by Wieland and seconded by deBuhr that the proof of publication of 
notice of hearing be received and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52495 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed amendment. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Planner III 
Sturch provided a brief summary of the proposed amendment. There being no 
one else present wishing to speak about the proposed amendment, the Mayor 
declared the hearing closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
52496 -  It was moved by Blanford and seconded by Wieland that Resolution #21,703, 

amending the Future Land Use Map, by changing the designation from 
Greenways/Floodplain and Neighborhood Commercial/Mixed Use to Low Density 
Residential, for property located in the vicinity of 1700-2000 Union Road, be 
adopted. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question 
on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers 
voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. 
Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,703 duly passed and 
adopted. 

4

ITEM 1.



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

 
52497 -  Mayor Brown announced that in accordance with the public notice of September 

6, 2019, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed 
rezoning from A-1, Agricultural District, to R-1, Residential District, of property 
located in the vicinity of 1700-2000 Union Road. It was then moved by Green and 
seconded by Miller that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be received 
and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52498 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed rezoning. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Planner III 
Sturch provided a brief summary of the proposed rezoning. Executive Officer of 
the Cedar Valley Home Builders Association Bob Manning, 2908 West 3rd 
Street, spoke in support of the proposed rezoning. There being no one else 
present wishing to speak about the proposed rezoning, the Mayor declared the 
hearing closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
52499 -  It was moved by Green and seconded by Blanford that Ordinance #2955, 

amending Section 26-118 of the Code of Ordinances by removing property 
located in the vicinity of 1700-2000 Union Road from the A-1, Agricultural District, 
and placing the same in the R-1, Residence District, be passed upon its first 
consideration. Following a question by Councilmember Green and response by 
Planner III Sturch, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the 
roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, 
Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
52500 - It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Darrah that Ordinance #2950, 

granting a partial property tax exemption to ACOH, LLC for construction of an 
industrial use manufacturing and office facility at 6601 Development Drive, be 
passed upon its third and final consideration. Following due consideration by the 
Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the 
following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, 
Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared 
Ordinance #2950 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52501 - It was moved by Green and seconded by deBuhr that Ordinance #2952, granting 

a partial property tax exemption to FN Investors, LLC for construction of an 
industrial use lab and office facility at 3019 Venture Way, be passed upon its 
third and final consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the 
Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following 
named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, 
Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Ordinance 
#2952 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52502 -    It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Green that Ordinance #2954, 

amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances 
relative to 48-hour parking on city streets, be passed upon its second 
consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the 
question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 

5

ITEM 1.



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, 
Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
52503 - It was moved by Green and seconded by Blanford that the following items and 

recommendations on the Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved: 
 
Approve the recommendation of the Mayor relative to the appointment of 
Amanda Lynch to the Planning & Zoning Commission, term ending 11/01/2020. 
 
Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of September 3, 2019 
relative to the following items:  
a) Planning & Zoning Commission Interview - Amanda Lynch.  
b) Bills & Payroll. 
 
Receive and file the FY19 Annual Report of the Public Works & Parks Division. 

 
 Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses:  
 a) Metro Mart, 103 Franklin Street, Class C beer - renewal.  
 b) Just Dough, 6607 University Avenue, Class B beer - renewal.  
 c) Escapology Cedar Falls, 2518 Melrose Drive, Special Class C liquor - renewal.  

 d) Doughy Joey's Peetza Joynt, 126 Brandilynn Boulevard, Class C liquor & 
outdoor service - renewal.  

 e) Little Bigs, 2210 College Street, Class C liquor - renewal.  
 f) The Brass Tap, 421 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal.  
 g) The Landmark, 107 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal.  
 h) Casey's General Store, 1225 Fountains Way, Class E liquor - renewal. 

 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52504 - It was moved by Miller and seconded by Darrah that the following resolutions be 

introduced and adopted: 
 

Resolution #21,704, approving and authorizing submission of the City's FY19 
Official Financial Report for Streets. 
 
Resolution #21,705, approving and authorizing execution of an Integrated Supply 
Agreement with Motor Parts & Equipment Corporation, d/b/a NAPA Auto Parts - 
Waterloo, relative to a Vendor Managed Inventory (VMI) Parts Management 
Program at the Fleet Maintenance Facility. 
 
Resolution #21,706, approving and authorizing execution of a Yard Waste 
Management Service Agreement with T&W Grinding relative to management of 
the City's compost facility. 
 
Resolution #21,707, approving and authorizing execution of a Professional 
Service Agreement with Black & Veatch Corporation for Wastewater Treatment 
Alternative Evaluation. 
 
Resolution #21,708, approving and authorizing execution of a Joint Funding 

6

ITEM 1.



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

Agreement with the U.S. Geological Survey relative to the Cedar River 
Streamgage Station. 
 
Resolution #21,709, approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental 
Agreement No. 1A to the Professional Service Agreement with Clapsaddle-
Garber Associates for construction observation and testing services relative to 
Gateway Business Park. 
 
Resolution #21,710, approving and authorizing execution of a Professional 
Service Agreement with Foth Infrastructure & Environment, LLC relative to the 
2019 University Avenue Traffic Counts Project. 
 
Resolution #21,711, approving and authorizing execution of a License 
Agreement with ARVIG Enterprises Inc. relative to installing a fiber optic 
telecommunications system within the Cedar Heights Drive and Greenhill Road 
public right-of-way. 
 
Resolution #21,712, approving a College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Zoning 
District site plan for façade improvements at 2211 College Street. 
 
Resolution #21,713, approving a Professional Office (PO-1) Zoning District site 
plan for signage at 915 Hudson Road. 
 
Resolution #21,714, approving and authorizing execution of a Professional 
Service Agreement with Foth Infrastructure and Environment, LLC relative to the 
Center Street Corridor Streetscape Project. 
 
Resolution #21,715, approving and authorizing execution of an amended HOME 
Investment Partnership Program Consortium Cooperation Agreement with the 
City of Waterloo for FY2020-2022. 

 
Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolutions #21,704 through #21,715 duly 
passed and adopted. 

 
52505 - It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Wieland that Resolution #21,716, 

approving and accepting the contract and bond of Feldman Concrete for the 
2019 Sidewalk Assessment Project, Zone 2, be adopted. Following a question by 
Councilmember Green and response by Public Works Director Schrage, the 
Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following 
named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, 
Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution 
#21,716 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52506 - It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Miller that Resolution #21,717, 

approving a Central Business District Overlay Zoning District site plan for façade 
improvements at 311 Main Street, as recommended by the Planning & Zoning 

7

ITEM 1.



 
 

 

- 5 - 

 

Commission, be adopted. Following questions by Councilmembers Miller, Kruse, 
Green, Darrah, deBuhr and Wieland, and responses by Community Services 
Manager Howard, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the 
roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, 
Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then 
declared Resolution #21,717 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52507 - It was moved by Blanford and seconded by Miller that Resolution #21,718, 

approving a College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Zoning District site plan for 
multiple temporary mural installations in the College Hill Business District, be 
adopted. Following comments of support for the proposed project by College Hill 
Partnership Executive Director Kathryn Sogard, the Mayor put the question on 
the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,718 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52508 -  It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Green that Ordinance #2956, 

amending Chapter 19, Streets and Sidewalks, of the Code of Ordinances relative 
to monument mailboxes, be passed upon its first consideration. City Attorney 
Rogers expressed concerns with the proposed ordinance and responded to 
questions by Councilmembers Blanford and deBuhr. The Mayor then put the 
question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Green. Nay: 
deBuhr, Wieland. Motion carried. 

 
52509 -     It was moved by Darrah and seconded by deBuhr that the bills and payroll of 

September 16, 2019 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City 
Treasurer be authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the 
proper funds in payment of the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, 
Green. Nay: None. Motion carried.  

 
52510 - Community Development Director Sheetz announced that the University Avenue 

Reconstruction Project will be receiving its fourth award. This award will be 
received in October from the Iowa Chapter of American Public Works Association 
who chose this as ‘The Project of the Year’ in the transportation category. 

 
 Community Development Director Sheetz also announced an open house to 

present the Imagine Downtown Vision Plan to be held September 25th, beginning 
at 6:30 PM at City Hall. 

 
 Fire Chief Bostwick and Assistant Police Chief Berte announced kickoff of the 

Pink Ribbon Campaign and the sale of pink police and fire patches, with all 
proceeds going to the Beyond Pink TEAM. 

 
 Public Safety Services Director Olson provided clarification of how the public 

safety model works in regard to staffing and responses to fire calls. He also 
commented that the Insurance Service Organization (ISO) rating of 3 recognized 
the increased staffing of the public safety model. 

8

ITEM 1.



 
 

 

- 6 - 

 

 
52511 - Mayor Brown responded to County Veterans Affairs Commissioners Glen Keith, 

609 Olive Street, and Jeremy Rosel, 911 Lilac Lane, who spoke opposed to 
establishing a City Veterans Affairs office in Cedar Falls.  

 
 Public Safety Services Director Olson responded to concerns expressed by 

Charles Johnson, 1003 State Street, regarding traffic and speeding on State 
Street.  

 
 Public Safety Services Director Olson responded to comments by Jessica 

Wittenburg, 4319 Wynnewood Drive, and Thomas (TJ) Frein, 1319 Austin Way, 
and questions by Councilmember Darrah and Mayor Brown regarding firefighter 
staffing and responses of public safety officers. 

 
 Community Development Director Sheetz responded to concerns expressed by 

Thomas (TJ) Frein, 1319 Austin Way, regarding increased parking along the new 
Place to Play Park. 

 
 Councilmembers Wieland, Green, Miller and Darrah, Public Safety Services 

Director Olson, Mayor Brown and City Attorney Rogers responded to comments 
by Mike Butler, 1022 Washington Street, Sharon Regenold, 108 Lilliput Lane, 
and Whitney Smith, 2904 Neola Street, regarding councilmembers publicly 
discussing personnel issues. 

 
52512 - It was moved by Wieland and seconded by Kruse that the meeting be adjourned 

at 8:17 P.M.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
     _________________________________ 

  Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

9

ITEM 1.



1 
 

 

 

Prepared by: Kevin Rogers, City Attorney, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613, (319)273-8600 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2954 

AN ORDINANCE:  (1).  REPEALING SUBSECTION (A)(17), OF SECTION 23-366, 

PARKING PROHIBITED IN SPECIFIC PLACES AND ENACTING A NEW SUBSECTION 

(A)(17) IN LIEU THEREOF; AND (2).  REPEALING SECTION 23-374, PARKING OF 

LARGE TRUCKS IN STREETS AND MUNICIPAL PARKING LOTS IN ITS ENTIRETY; ALL 

OF DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, OF ARTICLE IV, STOPPING, STANDING AND PARKING, 

OF CHAPTER 23, TRAFFIC AND MOTOR VEHICLES, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 

OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA. 

      

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

       Section 1.  Subsection (a)(17) of Section 23-366, Parking Prohibited in Specific Places, of 

Division 1, Generally, of Article IV, Stopping, Standing and Parking, of Chapter 23, Traffic and 

Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed 

in its entirety and a new Subsection (a)(17) is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 23-366.   Parking prohibited in specified places. 

(a)  No person shall stop, stand or park a vehicle, except when necessary to avoid conflict with other 
traffic or in compliance with the law or the directions of a police officer or traffic control device, in any 
of the following places:  

(1)  On a sidewalk.  

(2)  In front of a public or private driveway.  

(3)  Within an intersection.  

(4)  Within five feet of a fire hydrant.  

(5)  On a crosswalk.  

(6)  Within ten feet upon the approach to any flashing beacon, stop sign or traffic control signal 
located at the side of a roadway.  

(7)  Between a safety zone and the adjacent curb or within ten feet of points on the curb 
immediately opposite the ends of a safety zone, unless the traffic division has indicated a 
different length by signs or markings.  

(8)  Within 50 feet of the nearest rail or a railroad crossing, except when parked parallel with such 
rail and not exhibiting a red light.  

(9)  Within 20 feet of the driveway entrance of any fire station, and on the side of a street opposite 
the entrance to any fire station, within 75 feet of such entrance, only when properly 
signposted.  

10

ITEM 2.



2 
 

(10)  Alongside or opposite any street excavation or obstruction when stopping, standing or parking 
would obstruct traffic.  

(11)  On the roadway side of any vehicle stopped or parked at the edge or curb of a street.  

(12)  Upon any bridge or other elevated structure upon a highway or within a highway tunnel.  

(13)  At any place where official signs prohibit stopping or parking.  

(14)  Upon any street within the corporate limits of the city when parking is prohibited by a general 
ordinance of uniform application relating to the removal of snow and ice from the streets.  

(15)  In front of a curb cut or ramp which is located on public or private property, in a manner which 
blocks access to the curb cut or ramp.  

(16)  On that part of any street in the city between the curb line, if there be a curb, and the sidewalk 
line of the abutting property, nor shall any vehicle be parked on that part of any street not 
having a curb between the edge of the traveled portion of such street and the sidewalk line of 
the abutting property.  

(17)  On any street in the city for a continuous period of more than 48 hours. For purposes of this 
subsection, parking for a continuous period includes any absence for less than four hours.  
Upon expiration of the 48 hour period of continuous parking, a vehicle parked closer than 
2500 feet from the prior location or returned to the prior location in less than 48 hours, is a 
violation of this subsection.  A vehicle in violation of this subsection shall constitute a 
nuisance to be abated as provided by law, or members of the police operations division may 
impound such vehicle as provided in this article.  

 (Code 2017, § 26-261) 

       Section 2.  Section 23-374, Parking of Large Trucks in Streets and Municipal Parking Lots, 

of Division 1, Generally, of Article IV, Stopping, Standing and Parking, of Chapter 23, Traffic and 

Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed 

in its entirety. 

 

INTRODUCED:     September 3, 2019   

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:   September 3, 2019   

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:   September 16, 2019   

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:     

ADOPTED:        

 

 

____________________________ 

       James P. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  

11

ITEM 2.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by: David Sturch, Planner III, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 (319) 273-8600 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2955 

 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING SECTION 26-118,  

DISTRICT BOUNDARIES OF DIVISION I GENERALLY  

OF ARTICLE III DISTRICT AND DISTRICT  

REGULATIONS OF CHAPTER TWENTY-SIX (26) 

ZONING, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, OF THE 

COTY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND RE-ENACTING 

SAID SECTION 26-118 OF SAID ORDINANCE, AS 

AMENDED, SO AS TO APPLY AND INCLUDE TO THE  

CHANGE IN THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF  

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AS PROVIDED BY THIS 

ORDINANCE (Case #RZ19-002) 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

finds that the rezoning is consistent with the adopted Comprehensive Plan of the City of Cedar 

Falls and therefore has recommended to the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, that 

all that area described as follows shall be removed from the A-1 Agricultural Zoning District and 

placed in the R-1 Residence Zoning District, as follows: 

 

Commencing at the Southeast (SE) corner of the West Half of the Southeast Quarter (W 1/2 SE 

1/4) of said Section 15; thence along the East line of said West Half of the Southeast Quarter (W 

1/2 SE 1/4) North 00° 08' 50" West for a distance of 1326.32 feet to the North line of the 

Southwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter (SW 1/4 SE 1/4), the Point of Beginning; thence 

continuing along said East line, North 00° 08' 50" West for a distance of 1326.18 feet to the 

North line of said Southeast Quarter (SE 1/4); thence along said North line, South 89° 46' 03" 

West for a distance of 1815.80 feet to the Southwest (SW) corner of Lexington Heights 5th 

Addition, Cedar Falls, Iowa; thence continuing along said North line,  North 87° 41' 43" West 

for a distance of 17.43 feet to the East line of Lot 2, Robinson’s Minor Plat; thence along said 

East line North 00° 02' 29" West for a distance of 796.84 feet; thence North 50° 48' 28" West for 

a distance of 1057.37 feet; thence South 01° 17' 24" West for a distance of 145.38 feet to 

Northeast (NE) corner of the Southwest Quarter of the Northwest Quarter (SW 1/4 NW 1/4) of 

said Section 15 being a westerly line of said Lot 2; thence along said westerly line, South 00° 09' 

03" East for a distance of 675.40 feet to a point 648 feet distant northerly from the East/West 

Quarter line; thence along the line 648 feet distant northerly from the East/West Quarter line, 

12

ITEM 3.



South 89° 44' 19" West for a distance of 1254.18 feet to a point on the easterly right of way line 

of Union Road; thence along said right of way line, South 00° 00' 10" East for a distance of 

648.01 feet to the North line of the Southwest Quarter of said Section 15; thence along said 

North line,  North 89° 44' 19" East for a distance of 1255.85 feet to the West line of the East Half 

of the Southwest Quarter (E 1/2 SW 1/4) of said Section 15 per Robinson’s Minor Plat; thence 

along said West line, South 00° 00' 22" East for a distance of 1326.46 feet to the South line of 

the North Half of the Southwest Quarter (N 1/2 SW 1/4) of said Section 15; thence along said 

South line, North 89° 46' 52" East a distance of 1337.37 feet to the West line of said Southeast 

Quarter (SE 1/4); thence along the South line of the North Half of said Southeast Quarter (N 1/2 

SE 1/4), North 89° 45' 30" East a distance of 1318.98 feet to the Point of Beginning. 

 

Containing 119 acres, subject to easements of record. 

 

And 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, deems it to the best 

interests of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, that said proposal be made and approved; and 

 

  WHEREAS, the said Section 26-118, District Boundaries of Division I, Generally, of 

Article III, Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter Twenty-six (26), Zoning, of the Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, provides that the zoning map of the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, attached thereto, is incorporated into and made a part of said Ordinance; 

 

 WHEREAS, notice of public hearing has been published, as provided by law, and such 

hearing held on the proposed amendment; now, therefore, 

 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 

IOWA: 

 

 Section 1.  That the following described real estate: 

 

Commencing at the Southeast (SE) corner of the West Half of the Southeast Quarter (W1/2 SE 

1/4) of said Section 15; thence along the East line of said West Half of the Southeast Quarter (W 

1/2 SE 1/4) North 00° 08' 50" West for a distance of 1326.32 feet to the North line of the 

Southwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter (SW 1/4 SE 1/4), the Point of Beginning; thence 

continuing along said East line, North 00° 08' 50" West for a distance of 1326.18 feet to the 

North line of said Southeast Quarter (SE 1/4); thence along said North line, South 89° 46' 03" 

West for a distance of 1815.80 feet to the Southwest (SW) corner of Lexington Heights 5th 

Addition, Cedar Falls, Iowa; thence continuing along said North line,  North 87° 41' 43" West 

for a distance of 17.43 feet to the East line of Lot 2, Robinson’s Minor Plat; thence along said 

East line North 00° 02' 29" West for a distance of 796.84 feet; thence North 50° 48' 28" West for 

a distance of 1057.37 feet; thence South 01° 17' 24" West for a distance of 145.38 feet to 

Northeast (NE) corner of the Southwest Quarter of the Northwest Quarter (SW 1/4 NW 1/4) of 

said Section 15 being a westerly line of said Lot 2; thence along said westerly line, South 00° 09' 

03" East for a distance of 675.40 feet to a point 648 feet distant northerly from the East/West 

Quarter line; thence along the line 648 feet distant northerly from the East/West Quarter line, 

13

ITEM 3.



South 89° 44' 19" West for a distance of 1254.18 feet to a point on the easterly right of way line 

of Union Road; thence along said right of way line, South 00° 00' 10" East for a distance of 

648.01 feet to the North line of the Southwest Quarter of said Section 15; thence along said 

North line,  North 89° 44' 19" East for a distance of 1255.85 feet to the West line of the East Half 

of the Southwest Quarter (E 1/2 SW 1/4) of said Section 15 per Robinson’s Minor Plat; thence 

along said West line, South 00° 00' 22" East for a distance of 1326.46 feet to the South line of 

the North Half of the Southwest Quarter (N 1/2 SW 1/4) of said Section 15; thence along said 

South line, North 89° 46' 52" East a distance of 1337.37 feet to the West line of said Southeast 

Quarter (SE 1/4); thence along the South line of the North Half of said Southeast Quarter (N 1/2 

SE 1/4), North 89° 45' 30" East a distance of 1318.98 feet to the Point of Beginning. 

 

Containing 119 acres, subject to easements of record. 

 

Be and the same is hereby removed from the A-1 Agricultural District and added to the R-1 

Residence District. 

 

Section 2. That the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, be and the same is 

hereby amended to show the property described in Section 1, above, as now being in the R-1 

Residence District, and the amended map is hereby ordained to be the zoning map of the City of 

Cedar Falls, Iowa, as amended. 

 

 Section 3. That said Section 26-118, District Boundaries of Division I, Generally, of 

Article III, Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter Twenty-six (26), Zoning, of the Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, be and the same is hereby repealed and hereby re-

enacted in the identical language as the same now is, in order that the same shall apply to and 

include the change hereby made in the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

 

 
INTRODUCED:     September 16, 2019   

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:   September 16, 2019   

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:      

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:      

ADOPTED:         

 

 

____________________________ 

       James P. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  

14

ITEM 3.



1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by: Kevin Rogers, City Attorney, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613, (319)273-8600 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2956 

AN ORDINANCE (1) ENACTING NEW DIVISION 2, MAILBOXES, CONSISTING OF NEW 

SECTION 19-53, DEFINITIONS, NEW SECTION 19-54, VISIBILITY; OBSTRUCTIONS, 

NEW SECTION 19-55, PERMIT REQUIRED, NEW SECTION 19-56, CONFLICT WITH 

CITY SERVICES; OPERATIONS, AND NEW SECTION 19-57, RESPONSIBILITY OF 

OWNER, OF ARTICLE II, PARKINGS, OF CHAPTER 19, STREETS AND SIDEWALKS, 

OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA; and (2) 

REPEALING SUBSECTION (e) OF SECTION 19-47, PLANTINGS BY PROPERTY 

OWNERS OR PARTIES IN POSSESSION, OF ARTICLE II, PARKINGS, OF CHAPTER 

19, STREETS AND SIDEWALKS, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF NEW SUBSECTION (e) OF 

SECTION 19-47, PLANTINGS BY PROPERTY OWNERS OR PARTIES IN POSSESSION. 

  

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

       Section 1.  Article II, Parkings, of Chapter 19, Streets and Sidewalks, of the Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa is hereby amended by enacting a new Division 2, 

Mailboxes, containing New Section 19-53, Definitions, New Section 19-54, Visibility; 

Obstructions, New Section 19-55, Permit Required, New Section 19-56, Conflict with City 

Services; Operations, New Section 19-57, Responsibility of Property Owner, as follows: 

 

DIVISION 2.  MAILBOXES 

Sec. 19-53. Definitions. 

     The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this division, shall have the meanings 

ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning: 

15

ITEM 4.



2 
 

     Breakaway support post means a supporting post which shall be no larger than a 4-inch by 

4-inch wood post or a metal post with a strength no greater than a 2-inch diameter schedule 40 

steel pipe and which is buried no more than 24 inches deep.  Such a support post shall not be 

set in concrete unless specifically designed as a breakaway support system as defined in A 

Guide for Erecting Mailboxes on Highways published by the American Association of State 

Highway and Transportation Officials, May 24, 1984 (ASHTO). 

     Cluster-style mailbox means a style whereby mailboxes, meeting the specifications of the 

United States Postal Service (USPS) with the inscription plainly legible “U.S. MAIL” and 

“APPROVED BY THE POSTMASTER GENERAL,” are assembled and grouped together on a 

single area of land so that they are regarded as one unit. 

     Curbside mailbox means a mailbox consisting of a lightweight sheet metal or plastic box 

meeting the specifications of the United States Postal Service (USPS) with the inscription plainly 

legible “U.S. MAIL” and “APPROVED BY THE POSTMASTER GENERAL,” which is erected at 

the edge of a roadway or curbside of a street and is mounted on a breakaway support post, and 

is intended or used for the collection of mail and is to be served by a mail carrier from a vehicle. 

     Custom-built mailbox means a mailbox installed adjacent to the owner’s property at the edge 

of a roadway or curbside of a street and is constructed using materials that do not meet the 

definition of a curbside mailbox. 

     Clear sight area means the area or space between the curb line and abutting property 

owner’s lot line where clear vision is required to be maintained as described in section 19-47. 

Sec. 19-54.  Visibility; obstructions 

       (a)  All mailboxes must be installed away from any location where, by reason of the 

position, shape, or color, it may interfere with, obstruct the view of, or be confused with any 

authorized traffic control device. 

       (b)  In addition to the requirements in subpart (a), cluster-style mailboxes and custom-built 

mailboxes must be installed outside of clear sight areas. 

Sec. 19-55.  Permit required for custom-built mailboxes. 

       An excavation permit must be obtained from the city prior to installation in the public right-

of-way of any cluster-style or custom-built mailbox in the public right-of-way.  The city shall not 

be responsible for determining compliance with USPS or ASHTO standards as part of the 

permitting process for any mailbox.  The owner of the property adjacent to the mailbox shall be 

responsible for any damage to public infrastructure caused by installation of any mailbox in the 

public right-of-way. 

Sec. 19-56.  Conflict with city services; operations. 

       If any mailbox is determined by the city to be interfering with city services, facilities or 

operations, or with any other authorized user of the public right-of-way, or the maintenance or 

repair of public infrastructure is or would be interfered with because of the presence of any 

16

ITEM 4.



3 
 

mailbox, then the owner of the property adjacent to the mailbox shall be notified by the city  to 

remove the mailbox at the owner’s expense  In an emergency or if the owner fails to timely 

remove the mailbox after notification from the city, the city may remove the mailbox at the 

owner’s expense with notice of removal given as soon as practicable.  If such owner fails to pay 

the cost of removal of the mailbox within 30 days of notification by the city, such costs shall be 

assessed to the property adjacent to the mailbox for collection in the same manner as a 

property tax.  If a mailbox is required to be removed under this section, the city, at the option of 

the owner, shall either replace the mailbox with a curbside mailbox regardless of the type of 

mailbox removed, or else pay the fee, as of the date of removal, for mailbox replacement as set 

forth in the City’s fee schedule, to the owner of the property adjacent to the mailbox. 

Sec. 19-57.  Responsibility of owner. 

       (a)  The owner of the property adjacent to a mailbox located in the public right-of-way shall 

be responsible for regular maintenance and repair of such mailbox. 

       (b)  If damage to a mailbox is caused by the fault the city or its authorized contractors in the 

course of street maintenance, including snow removal, street sweeping, street cleaning, or 

similar work, or any repair, replacement, construction or reconstruction of city streets, alleys, 

subdrains, storm sewer pipes, conduits or other similar structures, or other city work within the 

public right-of-way, then the city shall repair the damage at a cost not to exceed the 

replacement cost of a curbside mailbox as set forth in the City’s fee schedule. If a mailbox is 

destroyed beyond use under such circumstances, then it shall be replaced  with a curbside 

mailbox, regardless of the type of mailbox destroyed, or else, at the option of the owner of the 

property adjacent to the mailbox, such owner shall be paid the fee, as of the date of destruction, 

for mailbox replacement as set forth in the City’s fee schedule.  If weather conditions prevent 

immediate repair or replacement the city may install a temporary mailbox. 

       (c)  The city shall bear no responsibility or liability whatsoever for personal injury or death to 

any person, or damage to any property, caused by a mailbox located in the public right-of-way. 

       (d)  Any and all damages to persons or property caused by the presence of a custom-built 

mailbox in the city’s right-of-way shall be the responsibility of the owner of the property adjacent 

to the custom-built mailbox. 

 

       Section 2.  Subsection (e) of Section 19-47, Plantings by Property Owners or Parties in 

Possession, of Article II, Parkings, of Chapter 19, Streets and Sidewalks, of the Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety and a new 

Subsection (e) of Section 19-47, Plantings by Property Owners or Parties in Possession is 

enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

       (e)  It shall be unlawful for the owner or party in possession of lots or parcels of ground in 
the city to fail to keep in good order or to maintain the area between the curb line and the 
property line abutting their property including keeping said area free of holes, pitfalls, 
stumps of trees, fences, brick, stone, cement,  stakes, posts or rods to which a metal, 

17

ITEM 4.



4 
 

plastic or similar receptacle designed to hold newspapers are affixed, private irrigation or 
sprinkler systems, retaining walls, landscaping brick, block, stone, timber or other similar 
material, or any other similar obstructions. In the event plant material described in 
subsection (a) of this section or any of the obstructions described in this subsection are 
damaged or destroyed by the city, its employees, agents or contractors, in the course of 
street maintenance, including snow removal, street sweeping, street cleaning, and other 
similar work, or any repair, replacement, construction or reconstruction of city streets, 
subdrains, storm sewer pipes, conduits or other similar structures, or other city work within 
the public right-of-way, including the area between the curb line and the abutting private 
property line, the city, its employees, agents and contractors shall have no liability to the 
private property owner or party in possession of the property adjacent to which such 
obstructions or plant material are located, for any damage to or destruction of such 
obstructions or plant material. The owner or party in possession of the land referred to 
above shall comply with the city ordinances pertaining to the trimming of trees, and other 
ordinances affecting the maintenance of said area of ground lying between the curb line 
and the property line abutting their property. 

 

INTRODUCED:     September 16, 2019   

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:   September 16, 2019   

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:      

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:     

ADOPTED:        

 

 

____________________________ 

       James P. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  

18

ITEM 4.



COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
City Hall – Council Chambers  

September 16, 2019 
 

The Committee of the Whole met in the Council Chambers at 5:55 p.m. on September 
16, 2019, with the following Committee persons in attendance:  Mayor Jim Brown, Tom 
Blanford, Frank Darrah, Susan deBuhr, Rob Green, Mark Miller, and David Wieland.   
Daryl Kruse was absent.  Staff members attended from all City Departments.  Bettina 
Fabos and Isaac Campbell both from University of Northern Iowa (UNI) also attended, 
as well as members of the community. 

Mayor Brown called the meeting to order and introduced the first item on the agenda, 
Wheatpasting Murals in Cedar Falls by Fortepan Iowa.   Bettina Fabos, UNI Professor 
of Visual Communication and Interactive Digital Studies, explained they have been 
working with Fortepan Iowa to create digital archives of photos taken by amateurs.  She 
stated this will be an online story telling feature of the history of Iowa.  She explained 
they are in partnership with five public libraries including the Cedar Falls Public Library.  
Ms. Fabos stated they are working on grant funding to create a scanning hub at the 
Cedar Falls Public Library.  She introduced Isaac Campbell, UNI graduate student.   Mr. 
Campbell continued the presentation and explained what wheatpasting is.  He said 
these murals have been put up around the world with flour and water.  He reviewed 
various murals.  He stated they can last up to 10 years and they are nondestructive, 
biodegradable, and images are scalable and can be put up at a low cost.  Mr. Campbell 
said he helped with a project in Budapest, Hungary and in Ottumwa, Iowa. He explained 
how a project is done. He reviewed the five temporary wheatpaste murals which will be 
put up in the College Hill area.  He stated the funding has been provided by the College 
Hill Partnership, UNI Alumni Association, and the Iowa Arts Council.  Mr. Campbell 
explained they will put these up before UNI Homecoming, October 5, and they will 
remain up for 1-year.  Mayor Brown opened it for discussion. Mr. Campbell stated 
repairs can be made to the murals, but the wheatpasting is durable.   

Mayor Brown introduced the final item on the agenda, bills and payroll. Rob Green 
moved to approve the bills and two payrolls as presented, Mark Miller seconded the 
motion.  The motion carried unanimously.  

There being no further discussion, Mayor Brown adjourned the meeting at 6:20 p.m.  

Minutes by Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 

19

ITEM 5.



20

ITEM 6.



21

ITEM 6.



22

ITEM 6.



23

ITEM 6.



24

ITEM 6.



25

ITEM 6.



26

ITEM 6.



27

ITEM 6.



28

ITEM 6.



29

ITEM 6.



30

ITEM 6.



31

ITEM 6.



32

ITEM 6.



33

ITEM 6.



34

ITEM 6.



35

ITEM 6.



36

ITEM 6.



37

ITEM 6.



38

ITEM 6.



39

ITEM 6.



40

ITEM 6.



41

ITEM 6.



42

ITEM 6.



43

ITEM 6.



44

ITEM 6.



45

ITEM 6.



46

ITEM 6.



47

ITEM 6.



48

ITEM 6.



49

ITEM 6.



50

ITEM 6.



51

ITEM 6.



52

ITEM 6.



53

ITEM 6.



54

ITEM 6.



55

ITEM 6.



56

ITEM 6.



57

ITEM 6.



58

ITEM 6.



59

ITEM 6.



60

ITEM 6.



61

ITEM 6.



62

ITEM 6.



63

ITEM 6.



64

ITEM 6.



65

ITEM 6.



66

ITEM 6.



67

ITEM 6.



68

ITEM 6.



69

ITEM 6.



70

ITEM 6.



71

ITEM 6.



72

ITEM 6.



73

ITEM 6.



74

ITEM 6.



75

ITEM 6.



76

ITEM 6.



77

ITEM 6.



78

ITEM 6.



79

ITEM 6.



80

ITEM 6.



81

ITEM 6.



82

ITEM 6.



83

ITEM 6.



84

ITEM 6.



85

ITEM 6.



86

ITEM 6.



87

ITEM 6.



88

ITEM 6.



89

ITEM 6.



90

ITEM 6.



91

ITEM 6.



92

ITEM 6.



93

ITEM 6.



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  4600 SOUTH MAIN STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Brown and City Councilmembers 

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Services Director/Chief of Police 

Date:  October 3, 2019 

Re:  Beer/Liquor License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for liquor licenses and/ or wine or beer 
permits. We find no records that would prohibit these license and permits and 
recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

a) Murphy USA, 518 Brandilynn Boulevard, Class C beer - renewal. 

b) Blue Room, 201 Main Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 

c) Chapala 2, 1704 West 1st Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 

d) Peppers Grill & Sports Pub, 620 East 18th Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 

e) SingleSpeed Brewing Co., 128 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - 
renewal. 

f) Casey's General Store, 601 Main Street, Class E liquor - renewal. 

g) Fareway Store, 214 North Magnolia Drive, Class E liquor - renewal. 

h) Hampton Inn & Suites, 101 West 1st Street, Class C beer & Class B wine - new. 

94

ITEM 7.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 

 

 TO: Mayor Brown & City Council Members  

 FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 DATE: October 3, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Title VI Nondiscrimination Agreement with Iowa Department of                

                        Transportation  (IDOT) 

 
Staff has been working with the IDOT to update our Title VI Non-Discrimination 
Agreement and Standard Title VI/Non-Discrimination Assurances. These documents 
are necessary to be in compliance with any federal funds received through the IDOT for 
transportation projects.  The IDOT was actually here for a site visit this past week and 
talked with staff in legal, finance, and engineering about our processes.  As part of that 
site visit, they informed us that we need to update both of these documents and also 
assign a Title VI Coordinator and ADA Coordinator.  To comply with the Title VI 
requirements, attached are the following documents: 

 Resolution designating our coordinator position 

 Title VI Non-Discrimination Agreement, including the City’s non-
discrimination policy statement 

 Standard Title VI/Non-Discrimination Assurances  
 
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me.  
 
 

95

ITEM 8.



Page 1 of 7

Title VI Non-Discrimination Agreement 
Iowa Department of Transportation 

and 
 

Name:

Name and title of designated Title VI coordinator:

*If the Title VI coordinator changes, please contact the Iowa DOT Title VI specialist.

Email:Phone/FAX:

State: County:ZIP Code:City:

Address:

Title:Name:

Title:

Address:

City: ZIP Code: County:State:

Phone/FAX: Email:

Title VI Program

I. Organization and staffing 
Pursuant to 23 C.F.R. § 200,                            City of Cedar Falls, Iowa
has appointed a Title VI coordinator  identified above, who is responsible for implementing and 
monitoring the local public agency's (LPA’s) Title VI program per this agreement, and is the 
representative for issues and actions pertaining to this agreement. The LPA will provide the Iowa 
Department of Transportation with a copy of the LPA’s organizational chart that illustrates the level 
and placement of the Title VI coordinator. 

The LPA will notify the Iowa DOT in writing of any changes to the LPA’s organization chart, Title VI 
coordinator or Title VI coordinator contact information.  

II. Assurances required
Pursuant to 49 C.F.R. § 21.7, every application for federal financial assistance or continuing federal
financial assistance must provide a statement of assurance and give reasonable guarantee that the
program is (or, in the case of a new program, will be) conducted in compliance with all requirements
imposed by or pursuant to 49 C.F.R. § 21 (Nondiscrimination in Federally Assisted Programs of the
Department of Transportation – Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964).  Fully
executed standard DOT Assurances (including Appendices A, B and C) are attached to this
agreement.

Agency Information 
Name and title of adminstrative head:

(Name of Local Public Agency)

Form 131024 (07-12)

James P. Brown Mayor

220 Clay Street

Cedar Falls IA 50613 Black Hawk

319-273-8600 James.Brown@cedarfalls.com

Colleen Sole Personnel Specialist

220 Clay Street

Cedar Falls IA 50613 Black Hawk

319-273-8600 Colleen.Sole@cedarfalls.com

96

ITEM 8.



Page 2 of 7

III. Implementation procedures
This agreement shall serve as the LPA’s Title VI plan pursuant to 23 C.F.R. § 200 and 49 C.F.R. § 21.
For the purpose of this agreement, “federal assistance” shall include all of the following.
• Grants and loans of federal funds.
• The grant or donation of federal property and/or interest in property.
• The detail of federal personnel.
• The sale and lease of, and permission to use (on other than a casual or transient basis),

federal property or any interest in such property without consideration or at a nominal
consideration, or at a consideration that is reduced for the purpose of assisting the LPA, or
in recognition of the public interest to be served by such sale or lease to the LPA.

• Any federal agreement, arrangement or other contract that has as one of its purposes the
provision of assistance.

The LPA shall: 
1. Issue a policy statement, signed by the head of the LPA, which expresses its commitment to

the nondiscrimination provisions of Title VI. The policy statement shall be circulated
throughout the LPA’s organization and to the public. Such information shall be published
where appropriate in languages other than English.

2. Take affirmative action to correct any deficiencies found by the Iowa DOT, Federal Highway
Administration or U.S. Department  of Transportation (USDOT) within a reasonable time
period, not to exceed 90 days, to implement Title VI compliance in accordance with this
agreement. The head of the LPA shall be held responsible for implementing Title VI
requirements.

3. Designate a Title VI coordinator who has a responsible position in the organization and easy
access to the head of the LPA. The coordinator shall be responsible for implementing and
monitoring Title VI activities and preparing required reports.

4. Develop and implement a public involvement plan that includes low-income and minority
community outreach and ensures those persons who are limited-English proficient (LEP)
can access services.

5. Process complaints of discrimination consistent with the provisions contained in this
agreement. Investigations shall be conducted by civil rights personnel trained in
discrimination complaint investigations. Identify each complainant by race, color, national
origin or gender, the nature of the complaint, date the complaint was filed, date the
investigation was completed, disposition, date of disposition, and other pertinent
information. A copy of the complaint, together with a copy of the LPA’s report of
investigation, shall be forwarded to the Iowa DOT’s civil rights coordinator within 60 days of
the date the complaint was received by the LPA.

6. Collect statistical data (race, color, national origin, age, gender, disability, LEP and income of
populations in service area) of participants in, and beneficiaries of, the programs and
activities conducted by the LPA.

7. Conduct Title VI self-assessment of the LPA’s program areas and activities, and of second- 
    tier sub-recipients, contractor/consultant program areas and activities. Where applicable, 

revise policies, procedures and directives to include Title VI requirements. Ensure that 
programs, policies, and other activities do not have disproportionate adverse effects on 
minority and low-income populations. 

8. Conduct training programs on Title VI and related statutes.
9. Prepare a yearly report of Title VI accomplishments and changes to the program covering

the prior year, and identify goals and objectives for the coming year.
o Annual work plan: Outline Title VI monitoring and review activities planned for the

coming year; and indicate a target date for completion.
o Accomplishment report: List major accomplishments made regarding Title VI

activities. Include instances where Title VI issues were identified and discrimination
was prevented. Indicate activities and efforts the Title VI coordinator and program
area personnel have undertaken in monitoring Title VI. Include a description of the
scope and conclusions of any special internal and external reviews conducted by
the Title VI coordinator. List any major problem(s) identified and corrective action(s)
taken. Include a summary and status report on any Title VI complaints filed with the
LPA. Include a listing of complaints received against second-tier sub-recipients, if
any, as well as a summary of complaints and actions taken.

10. Include Title VI compliant language in all contracts to second-tier sub-recipients.
97

ITEM 8.



Page 3 of 7

IV. Discrimination complaint procedures – allegations of discrimination in federally
assisted programs or activities
The LPA adopts the following discrimination complaint procedures for complaints relating to
federally assisted transportation-related programs or activities.

1. Filing a discrimination complaint: Any person who believes that he or she, or any class of
individuals, or in connection with any disadvantaged business enterprise, has been or is
being subjected to discrimination prohibited by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964,
42 U.S.C. § 2000d; the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101 et seq.;
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 U.S.C. §§ 701 et seq.; and the Civil Rights
Restoration Act of 1987, Pub. L. No. 100-259, 102 Stat. 28, has the right to file a complaint.

Any individual wishing to file a discrimination complaint must be given the option to file the 
complaint with the LPA, or directly with the Iowa DOT, FHWA, USDOT and U.S. Department 
of Justice . Complaints may be filed with all agencies simultaneously.  

No individual or agency shall refuse service, discharge or retaliate in any manner against 
any persons because that individual has filed a discrimination complaint, instituted any 
proceeding related to a discrimination complaint, testified, or is about to testify, in any 
proceeding or investigation related to a discrimination complaint, or has provided  
information or assisted in an investigation.  

2. Complaint filing time-frame: A discrimination complaint must be filed within 180 calendar
days of one of the following.

(a) The alleged act of discrimination. 
(b) Date when the person(s) became aware of the alleged discrimination 
(c) Date on which the conduct was discontinued, if there has been a continuing 

course of conduct. 

The LPA or their designee may extend the time for filing or waive the time limit in the interest 
of justice, specifying in writing the reason for so doing. 

3. Contents of a complaint: A discrimination complaint must be written. The document must
contain the following information.

a) The complainant’s name and address, or other means by which the
complainant may be contacted.

b) Identification of individual(s) or organization(s) responsible for the alleged
 discrimination.

c) A description of the complainant’s allegations, which must include enough
detail to determine if the LPA has jurisdiction over the complaint and if the
complaint was filed timely.

d) Specific prohibited bases of alleged discrimination (i.e., race, color, gender,
etc.)

e) Apparent merit of the complaint.
f) The complainant’s signature or signature of his/her authorized

representative.

In the event that a person makes a verbal complaint of discrimination to an officer or 
employee of the LPA, the complainant shall be interviewed by the LPA’s Title VI coordinator. 
If necessary, the Title VI coordinator will assist the complainant in reducing the complaint to 
writing and then submit the written version of the complaint to the person for signature.  

4. Complaints against the LPA: Any complaints received against the LPA should immediately
be forwarded to the Iowa DOT for investigation. The LPA shall not investigate any complaint
in which it has been named in the complaint. The contact information for the Iowa DOT’s
Title VI program is:

Iowa Department of Transportation 
Office of Employee Services – Civil Rights 
800 Lincoln Way 
Ames, Iowa 50010 
515-239-1422 
515-817-6502 (fax) 
dot.civilrights@iowadot.us

98

ITEM 8.



Page 4 of 7

5. Notice of Receipt: All complaints shall be referred to the LPA’s Title VI coordinator for review
and action. Within 10 days of receipt of the discrimination complaint, the coordinator shall issue
an initial written Notice of Receipt that:

a) Acknowledges receipt of the discrimination complaint.
b) Advises the complainant of his/her right to seek representation by an attorney or

other individual of his or her choice in the discrimination complaint process.
c) Contains a list of each issue raised in the discrimination complaint.
d) Advises the complainant of the timeframes for processing the discrimination

complaint and providing a determination.
e) Advises the complainant of other avenues of redress of their complaint, including

the Iowa DOT, FHWA, USDOT and USDOJ.

6. Notification of the Iowa DOT of a complaint: The LPA shall advise the Iowa DOT within 10
business days of receipt of the complaint. Generally, the following information will be included in
every notification to the Iowa DOT.

a) Name, address and phone number of the complainant.
b) Name(s) and address(es) of alleged discriminating official(s).
c) Basis of complaint (i.e., race, color, national origin, gender).
d) Date of alleged discriminatory act(s).
e) Date of complaint received by the LPA.
f) A statement of the complaint.
g) Other agencies (state, local or federal) where the complaint has been filed.
h) An explanation of the actions the LPA has taken or proposed to resolve the

issue identified in the complaint.

7. Processing a complaint and time-frame: The total time allowed for processing the
discrimination complaint is 90 calendar days from the date the complaint was filed. There is no
extension available at this level. This time-frame includes 60 calendar days at the LPA level and
30 days for review at the state level, if needed.

If the complainant elects to file a complaint with both the LPA and Iowa DOT, the complainant
shall be informed that the LPA has 90 calendar days to process the discrimination complaint and
the Iowa DOT shall not investigate the complaint until the 90 calendar-day period has expired.

Immediately after issuance of the Notice of Receipt to the complainant (step four), the LPA’s Title
VI coordinator shall either begin the fact-finding or investigation of the discrimination complaint,
or arrange to have an investigation conducted.

Based on the information obtained during that investigation, the coordinator shall render a
recommendation for action in a Report of Findings to the head of the LPA.

8. Alternative dispute resolution/mediation process: The complainant must be given an
invitation to participate in mediation to resolve the complaint by informal means. The LPA’s Title
VI coordinator shall include an invitation to mediation with the Notice of Receipt, offering the
opportunity to use the alternative dispute resolution/mediation process.

If the complaint selects mediation, it allows disputes to be resolved in a less adversarial manner.
With mediation, a neutral party assists two opposing parties in a dispute come to an agreement
to resolve their issue. The mediator does not function as a judge or arbiter, but simply helps the
parties resolve the dispute themselves.

Upon receiving a request to mediate, the LPA’s Title VI coordinator shall identify or designate a
mediator who must be a neutral and impartial third party. The mediator must be a person
acceptable to all parties and who will assist the parties in resolving their disputes.

If the complainant chooses to participate in mediation, she or he or the designee must respond in
writing within 10 calendar days of the date of the invitation. This written acceptance must be
dated and signed by the complainant and must also include the relief sought.

99

ITEM 8.



Page 5 of 7

After mediation is arranged, a written confirmation identifying the date, time and location of 
the mediation conference shall be sent to both parties. If possible, the mediation process 
should be completed within 30 calendar days of receipt of the discrimination complaint. This 
will assist in keeping within the 90 calendar-day time-frame of the written Notice of Final 
Action if the mediation is not successful.  

If resolution is reached under mediation, the agreement shall be in writing. A copy of the 
signed agreement shall be sent to the Iowa DOT’s Title VI program coordinator. If an 
agreement is reached, but a party to it believes his/her agreement has been breached, the 
non-breaching party may file another complaint. If the parties do not reach resolution under 
mediation, the LPA’s Title VI coordinator shall continue with the investigation.  

9. Notice of Final Action: A written Notice of Final Action shall be provided to the complainant
within 60 days of the date the discrimination complaint was filed. It shall contain:

a) A statement regarding the disposition of each issue identified in the
discrimination complaint and reason for the determination.

b) A copy of the mediation agreement, if the discrimination complaint was
resolved by mediation.

c) A notice that the complainant has the right to file a complaint with the Iowa
DOT, FHWA, USDOT or USDOJ within 30 calendar days after the Notice of
Final Action, if she or he is dissatisfied with the final action on the
discrimination complaint.

The LPA’s Title VI coordinator shall provide the Iowa DOT’s Title VI program coordinator with 
a copy of this decision, as well as a summary of findings upon completion of the 
investigation. Should deficiencies be noted in the implementation of these discrimination 
complaint procedures by the LPA, the Iowa DOT’s Title VI program coordinator will work in 
conjunction with the LPA’s Title VI coordinator to review the information and/or provide 
technical assistance in the discrimination complaint process, mediation process, and/or 

 investigation. 

10. Corrective action: If discrimination is found through the process of a complaint
investigation, the respondent shall be requested to voluntarily comply with corrective
action(s) or a conciliation agreement to correct the discrimination.

11. Confidentiality: LPA and Iowa DOT Title VI program coordinators are required to keep the
following information confidential to the maximum extent possible, consistent with applicable
law and fair determination of the discrimination complaint.

a) The fact that the discrimination complaint has been filed.
b) The identity of the complainant(s).
c) The identity of individual respondents to the allegations.
d) The identity of any person(s) who furnished information relative to, or

assisting in, a complaint investigation.

12. Record keeping: The LPA’s Title VI coordinator shall maintain a log of complaints filed that
alleged discrimination. The log must include:

a) The name and address of the complainant.
b) Basis of discrimination complaint.
c) Description of complaint.
d) Date filed.
e) Disposition and date.
f) Any other pertinent information.

All records regarding discrimination complaints and actions taken on discrimination 
complaints must be maintained for a period of not less than three years from the final date of 
resolution of the complaint.

100

ITEM 8.



Page 6 of 7

V. Sanctions 
In the event the LPA fails or refuses to comply with the terms of this agreement, the Iowa DOT may take 
any or all of the following actions. 
a) Cancel, terminate or suspend this agreement in whole or in part.
b) Refrain from extending any further assistance to the LPA under the program from which the

failure or refusal occurred, until satisfactory assurance of future compliance has been received
from the LPA.

c) Take such other action that may be deemed appropriate under the circumstances, until
compliance or remedial action has been accomplished by the LPA.

d) Refer the case to the USDOJ for appropriate legal proceedings.

IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION City of Cedar Falls, Iowa

Signature

Printed Name and TitlePrinted Name and Title

Date Date

Signature

James P. Brown, Mayor

101

ITEM 8.



Page 7 of 7

Printed Name and Title

Date

Title VI Non-discrimination Policy Statement 
, hereinafter referred to as the LPA, 

hereby assures that no person shall on the grounds of race, color, national origin, gender, age or disability, as 
provided by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. §2000d, and the Civil Rights Restoration Act of 
1987, Pub. L. No. 100-259, 102 Stat. 28, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of or be 
otherwise subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving federal financial assistance. The 
LPA further assures every effort will be made to ensure nondiscrimination in all of its programs and activities, 
regardless of whether those programs and activities are federally funded. 

It is the policy of the LPA to comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964; Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 
1964, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e; Age Discrimination Act of 1975, 42 U.S.C. §§ 6101-6107; Uniform Relocation 
Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, 42 U.S.C. §§ 4601-4655; 1973 Federal Aid 
Highway Act, 23 U.S.C. § 324; Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, Pub. L. No. 92-318, 86 Stat. 235; 
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 U.S.C. §§ 701 et seq; Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, Pub. 
L. No. 100-259, 102 Stat. 28; Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101 et seq.; Title VIII of the
Civil Rights Act 1968, 42 U.S.C. §§ 3601-3631; Exec. Order No. 12898, 59 Fed. Reg. 7629 (1994) (Federal 
Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and Low-Income Populations); and Exec. Order 
No. 13166, 65 Fed. Reg. 50121 (2000) (Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English 
Proficiency). 

The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, Pub. L. No. 100-259, 102 Stat. 28, broadened the scope of Title VI 
coverage by expanding the definition of terms “programs or activities” to include all programs or activities of 
federal-aid recipients, subrecipients and contractors/consultants, regardless of whether such programs and 
activities are federally assisted. 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Pub. L. No. 93-112, 87 Stat. 
355, the LPA hereby gives assurance that no qualified disabled person shall, solely by reason of disability, be 
excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of or otherwise be subjected to discrimination, including 
discrimination in employment, under any program or activity that receives or benefits from this federal 
financial assistance.  

The LPA also assures that every effort will be made to prevent discrimination through the impacts of its 
programs, policies and activities on minority and low-income populations. In addition, the LPA will take 
reasonable steps to provide meaningful access to services for persons with LEP. The LPA will, where necessary 
and appropriate, revise, update and incorporate nondiscrimination requirements into appropriate manuals, 
directives and regulations.  

In the event the LPA distributes federal-aid funds to a second-tier subrecipient, the LPA will include Title VI 
language in all written agreements. 

, is responsible for initiating and monitoring 
Title VI activities, preparing reports and performing other responsibilities, as required by 23 C.F.R. § 200 and 49 
C.F.R. § 21. 

The                                         City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

The LPA's                       Colleen Sole, Title VI Coordinator

Signature

James P. Brown, Mayor

102

ITEM 8.



 
 

 
 

The United States Department of Transportation (USDOT) 
 

Standard Title VI/Non-Discrimination Assurances 
 

DOT Order No. 1050.2A 
 

The ___________________ (herein referred to as the “Recipient”), HEREBY AGREES THAT, as a 
condition to receiving any Federal financial assistance from the United States Department of Transportation 
(DOT), through the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), is subject to and will comply with the 
following: 
  
Statutory/Regulatory Authorities 
 

• Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., 78 stat. 252), (prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin); 

• 49 C.F.R. Part 21 (entitled Nondiscrimination In Federally-Assisted Programs Of The Department 
Of Transportation—Effectuation Of Title VI Of The Civil Rights Act Of 1964);  

• 28 C.F.R. section 50.3 (U.S. Department of Justice Guidelines for Enforcement of Title VI of the 
Civil Rights Act of 1964); 

 
The preceding statutory and regulatory cites hereinafter are referred to as the “Acts” and “Regulations,” 
respectively. 
 
General Assurances 
 
In accordance with the Acts, the Regulations, and other pertinent directives, circulars, policy, memoranda, 
and/or guidance, the Recipient hereby gives assurance that it will promptly take any measures necessary to 
ensure that:  
 

“No person in the United States shall, on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, be 
excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to 
discrimination under any program or activity,”  for which the Recipient receives Federal 
financial assistance from DOT, including the FHWA. 

 
The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 clarified the original intent of Congress, with respect to Title VI 
and other Non-discrimination requirements (The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, and Section 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973) by restoring the broad, institutional-wide scope and coverage of these non-
discrimination statutes and requirements to include all programs and activities of the Recipient, so long as 
any portion of the program is Federally assisted.   
 
Specific Assurances 
 
More specifically, and without limiting the above general Assurance, the Recipient agrees with and gives the 
following Assurances with respect to its Federally assisted Federal Highway Program: 
 

1. The Recipient agrees that each “activity,” “facility,” or “program,” as defined in §§ 21.23 (b) and 
21.23 (e) of 49 C.F.R. § 21 will be (with regard to an “activity”) facilitated, or will be (with regard to 
a “facility”) operated, or will be (with regard to a “program”) conducted in compliance with all 
requirements imposed by, or pursuant to the Acts and the Regulations. 
 

103

ITEM 8.



 
 

 
 

2. The Recipient will insert the following notification in all solicitations for bids, Requests For 
Proposals for work, or material subject to the Acts and the Regulations made in connection with all 
Federal Highway Programs and, in adapted form, in all proposals for negotiated agreements 
regardless of funding source: 

 
“The ___________________, in accordance with the provisions of Title VI of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1964 (78 Stat. 252, 42 U.S.C. §§ 2000d to 2000d-4) and the Regulations, 
hereby notifies all bidders that it will affirmatively ensure that any contract entered into 
pursuant to this advertisement, disadvantaged business enterprises will be afforded full 
and fair opportunity to submit bids in response to this invitation and will not be 
discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in consideration for 
an award.” 

 
3. The Recipient will insert the clauses of Appendix A and E of this Assurance in every contract or 

agreement subject to the Acts and the Regulations. 
 

4. The Recipient will insert the clauses of Appendix B of this Assurance, as a covenant running with 
the land, in any deed from the United States effecting or recording a transfer of real property, 
structures, use, or improvements thereon or interest therein to a Recipient. 

 
5. That where the Recipient receives Federal financial assistance to construct a facility, or part of a 

facility, the Assurance will extend to the entire facility and facilities operated in connection 
therewith. 

 
6. That where the Recipient receives Federal financial assistance in the form, or for the acquisition of 

real property or an interest in real property, the Assurance will extend to rights to space on, over, or 
under such property. 

 
7. That the Recipient will include the clauses set forth in Appendix C and Appendix D of this 

Assurance, as a covenant running with the land, in any future deeds, leases, licenses, permits, or 
similar instruments entered into by the Recipient with other parties: 

 
a. for the subsequent transfer of real property acquired or improved under the applicable 

activity, project, or program; and  
b. for the construction or use of, or access to, space on, over, or under real property acquired or 

improved under the applicable activity, project, or program. 
 

8. That this Assurance obligates the Recipient for the period during which Federal financial assistance 
is extended to the program, except where the Federal financial assistance is to provide, or is in the 
form of, personal property, or real property, or interest therein, or structures or improvements 
thereon, in which case the Assurance obligates the Recipient, or any transferee for the longer of the 
following periods: 

 
a. the period during which the property is used for a purpose for which the Federal financial 

assistance is extended, or for another purpose involving the provision of similar services or 
benefits; or  

b. the period during which the Recipient retains ownership or possession of the property. 
 

9. The Recipient will provide for such methods of administration for the program as are found by the 
Secretary of Transportation or the official to whom he/she delegates specific authority to give 
reasonable guarantee that it, other recipients, sub-recipients, sub-grantees, contractors, 
subcontractors, consultants, transferees, successors in interest, and other participants of Federal 

104

ITEM 8.



 
 

 
 

financial assistance under such program will comply with all requirements imposed or pursuant to 
the Acts, the Regulations, and this Assurance. 

 
10.  The Recipient agrees that the United States has a right to seek judicial enforcement with regard to 

any matter arising under the Acts, the Regulations, and this Assurance. 
 
By signing this ASSURANCE, ___________________ also agrees to comply (and require any sub-
recipients, sub-grantees, contractors, successors, transferees, and/or assignees to comply) with all applicable 
provisions governing the FHWA access to records, accounts, documents, information, facilities, and staff. 
You also recognize that you must comply with any program or compliance reviews, and/or complaint 
investigations conducted by the FHWA. You must keep records, reports, and submit the material for review 
upon request to FHWA, or its designee in a timely, complete, and accurate way.  Additionally, you must 
comply with all other reporting, data collection, and evaluation requirements, as prescribed by law or 
detailed in program guidance. 

___________________ gives this ASSURANCE in consideration of and for obtaining any Federal grants, 
loans, contracts, agreements, property, and/or discounts, or other Federal-aid and Federal financial assistance 
extended after the date hereof to the recipients by the U.S. Department of Transportation under the Federal 
Highway Program. This ASSURANCE is binding on Iowa, other recipients, sub-recipients, sub-
grantees, contractors, subcontractors and their subcontractors’, transferees, successors in interest, and any 
other participants in the Federal Highway Program. The person (s) signing below is authorized to sign this 
ASSURANCE on behalf of the Recipient. 
 

____________________________________________________ 
(Name of Recipient) 

 
by_____________________________________________________ 

(Signature of Authorized Official) 
 

DATED_________________________________ 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

105

ITEM 8.



 
 

 
 

 
 
 

APPENDIX A 

 
During the performance of this contract, the contractor, for itself, its assignees, and successors in interest 
(hereinafter referred to as the “contractor”) agrees as follows: 
 
1. Compliance with Regulations:  The contractor (hereinafter includes consultants) will comply with the Acts 

and the Regulations relative to Non-discrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the U.S. Department of 
Transportation, Federal Highway Administration, as they may be amended from time to time, which are 
herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this contract. 
 

2. Non-discrimination:  The contractor, with regard to the work performed by it during the contract, will not 
discriminate on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in the selection and retention of subcontractors, 
including procurements of materials and leases of equipment. The contractor will not participate directly or 
indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by the Acts and the Regulations, including employment practices 
when the contract covers any activity, project, or program set forth in Appendix B of 49 CFR Part 21. 
 

3. Solicitations for Subcontracts, Including Procurements of Materials and Equipment:  In all 
solicitations, either by competitive bidding, or negotiation made by the contractor for work to be performed 
under a subcontract, including procurements of materials, or leases of equipment, each potential 
subcontractor or supplier will be notified by the contractor of the contractor’s obligations under this contract 
and the Acts and the Regulations relative to Non-discrimination on the grounds of race, color, or national 
origin. 
 

4. Information and Reports:  The contractor will provide all information and reports required by the Acts, 
the Regulations, and directives issued pursuant thereto and will permit access to its books, records, accounts, 
other sources of information, and its facilities as may be determined by the Recipient or the Federal 
Highway Administration to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such Acts, Regulations, and 
instructions. Where any information required of a contractor is in the exclusive possession of another who 
fails or refuses to furnish the information, the contractor will so certify to the Recipient or the Federal 
Highway Administration, as appropriate, and will set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the 
information. 
 

5. Sanctions for Noncompliance:  In the event of a contractor’s noncompliance with the Non-discrimination 
provisions of this contract, the Recipient will impose such contract sanctions as it or the Federal Highway 
Administration may determine to be appropriate, including, but not limited to: 
 

a. withholding payments to the contractor under the contract until the contractor complies; and/or 
b. cancelling, terminating, or suspending a contract, in whole or in part. 
 

6. Incorporation of Provisions:  The contractor will include the provisions of paragraphs one through six in 
every subcontract, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the Acts, 
the Regulations and directives issued pursuant thereto. The contractor will take action with respect to any 
subcontract or procurement as the Recipient or the Federal Highway Administration may direct as a 
means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance. Provided, that if the contractor 
becomes involved in, or is threatened with litigation by a subcontractor, or supplier because of such 
direction, the contractor may request the Recipient to enter into any litigation to protect the interests of the 
Recipient. In addition, the contractor may request the United States to enter into the litigation to protect the 
interests of the United States.

106

ITEM 8.



 
 

 
 

 
APPENDIX B 

 
CLAUSES FOR DEEDS TRANSFERRING UNITED STATES PROPERTY 

 
The following clauses will be included in deeds effecting or recording the transfer of real property, 
structures, or improvements thereon, or granting interest therein from the United States pursuant to 
the provisions of Assurance 4: 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Department of Transportation as authorized by law and upon the 
condition that the ___________________ will accept title to the lands and maintain the project 
constructed thereon in accordance with laws of the state of Iowa, the Regulations for the 
Administration of Federal Highway Program, and the policies and procedures prescribed by the 
Federal Highway Administration of the U.S. Department of Transportation in accordance and in 
compliance with all requirements imposed by Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, U.S. 
Department of Transportation, Subtitle A, Office of the Secretary, Part 21, Non-discrimination in 
Federally-assisted programs of the U.S. Department of Transportation pertaining to and effectuating 
the provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (78 Stat. 252; 42 U.S.C. § 2000d to 2000d-
4), does hereby remise, release, quitclaim and convey unto the ___________________ all the right, title 
and interest of the U.S. Department of Transportation in and to said lands described in Exhibit A 
attached hereto and made a part hereof. 
 

(HABENDUM CLAUSE) 
 
TO HAVE AND TO HOLD said lands and interests therein unto ___________________ and its 
successors forever, subject, however, to the covenants, conditions, restrictions and reservations herein 
contained as follows, which will remain in effect for the period during which the real property or 
structures are used for a purpose for which Federal financial assistance is extended or for another 
purpose involving the provision of similar services or benefits and will be binding on the 
___________________, its successors and assigns. 
 
The ___________________, in consideration of the conveyance of said lands and interests in lands, 
does hereby covenant and agree as a covenant running with the land for itself, its successors and 
assigns, that (1) no person will on the grounds of race, color, or national origin be excluded from 
participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination with regard to 
any facility located wholly or in part on, over, or under such lands hereby conveyed [,] [and]* (2) that 
the ___________________ will use the lands and interests in lands and interests in lands so conveyed, 
in compliance with all requirements imposed by or pursuant to Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, 
U.S. Department of Transportation, Subtitle A, Office of the Secretary, Part 21, Non-discrimination 
in Federally-assisted programs of the U.S. Department of Transportation, Effectuation of Title VI of 
the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and as said Regulations and Acts may be amended[, and (3) that in the 
event of breach of any of the above-mentioned non-discrimination conditions, the Department will 
have a right to enter or re-enter said lands and facilities on said land, and that above described land 
and facilities will thereon revert to and vest in and become the absolute property of the U.S. 
Department of Transportation and its assigns as such interest existed prior to this instruction].* 
 
(*Reverter clause and related language to be used only when it is determined that such a clause is 
necessary in order to make clear the purpose of Title VI.) 

107

ITEM 8.



 
 

 
 

APPENDIX C 
 

CLAUSES FOR TRANSFER OF REAL PROPERTY ACQUIRED OR IMPROVED UNDER 
THE ACTIVITY, FACILITY, OR PROGRAM 

 
 

The following clauses will be included in deeds, licenses, leases, permits, or similar instruments 
entered into by the ___________________ pursuant to the provisions of Assurance 7(a): 
 
A.  The (grantee, lessee, permittee, etc. as appropriate) for himself/herself, his/her heirs, personal 

representatives, successors in interest, and assigns, as a part of the consideration hereof, does 
hereby covenant and agree [in the case of deeds and leases add “as a covenant running with the 
land”] that: 
 

1. In the event facilities are constructed, maintained, or otherwise operated on the property 
described in this (deed, license, lease, permit, etc.) for a purpose for which a U.S. 
Department of Transportation activity, facility, or program is extended or for another 
purpose involving the provision of similar services or benefits, the (grantee, licensee, 
lessee, permittee, etc.) will maintain and operate such facilities and services in 
compliance with all requirements imposed by the Acts and Regulations (as may be 
amended) such that no person on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, will be 
excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to 
discrimination in the use of said facilities.  

 
B. With respect to licenses, leases, permits, etc., in the event of breach of any of the above Non-

discrimination covenants, ___________________ will have the right to terminate the (lease, 
license, permit, etc.) and to enter, re-enter, and repossess said lands and facilities thereon, and 
hold the same as if the (lease, license, permit, etc.) had never been made or issued.* 
 

C. With respect to a deed, in the event of breach of any of the above Non-discrimination covenants, 
the ___________________ will have the right to enter or re-enter the lands and facilities thereon, 
and the above described lands and facilities will there upon revert to and vest in and become the 
absolute property of the ___________________ and its assigns.* 

 
(*Reverter clause and related language to be used only when it is determined that such a clause is 
necessary to make clear the purpose of Title VI.)

108

ITEM 8.



 
 

 
 

 
APPENDIX D 

 
CLAUSES FOR CONSTRUCTION/USE/ACCESS TO REAL PROPERTY ACQUIRED 

UNDER THE ACTIVITY, FACILITY OR PROGRAM 
 

 
The following clauses will be included in deeds, licenses, permits, or similar instruments/ 
agreements entered into by ___________________  pursuant to the provisions of Assurance 7(b): 
 
A. The (grantee, licensee, permittee, etc., as appropriate) for himself/herself, his/her heirs, 

personal representatives, successors in interest, and assigns, as a part of the consideration 
hereof, does hereby covenant and agree (in the case of deeds and leases add, “as a covenant 
running with the land”) that (1) no person on the ground of race, color, or national origin, 
will be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to 
discrimination in the use of said facilities, (2) that in the construction of any improvements 
on, over, or under such land, and the furnishing of services thereon, no person on the ground 
of race, color, or national origin, will be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits 
of, or otherwise be subjected to discrimination, (3) that the (grantee, licensee, lessee, 
permittee, etc.) will use the premises in compliance with all other requirements imposed by 
or pursuant to the Acts and Regulations, as amended, set forth in this Assurance. 
 

B. With respect to (licenses, leases, permits, etc.), in the event of breach of any of the above 
Non-discrimination covenants, ___________________ will have the right to terminate the 
(license, permit, etc., as appropriate) and to enter or re-enter and repossess said land and the 
facilities thereon, and hold the same as if said (license, permit, etc., as appropriate) had never 
been made or issued.* 
 

C. With respect to deeds, in the event of breach of any of the above Non-discrimination 
covenants, ___________________ will there upon revert to and vest in and become the 
absolute property of ___________________ and its assigns.* 

 
 
(*Reverter clause and related language to be used only when it is determined that such a clause is 
necessary to make clear the purpose of Title VI.) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

109

ITEM 8.



 
 

 
 

APPENDIX E 
 

During the performance of this contract, the contractor, for itself, its assignees, and successors in 
interest (hereinafter referred to as the “contractor”) agrees to comply with the following non-
discrimination statutes and authorities; including but not limited to: 
 

• Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., 78 stat. 252), 
(prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin); and 49 CFR Part 21; 

• The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, 
(42 U.S.C. § 4601), (prohibits unfair treatment of persons displaced or whose property 
has been acquired because of Federal or Federal-aid programs and projects);  

• Federal-Aid Highway Act of 1973, (23 U.S.C. § 324 et seq.), (prohibits discrimination on 
the basis of sex); 

• Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, (29 U.S.C. § 794 et seq.), as amended, 
(prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability); and 49 CFR Part 27; 

• The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, (42 U.S.C. § 6101 et seq.), (prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of age); 

• Airport and Airway Improvement Act of 1982, (49 USC § 471, Section 47123), as 
amended, (prohibits discrimination based on race, creed, color, national origin, or sex);  

• The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, (PL 100-209), (Broadened the scope, coverage 
and applicability of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, The Age Discrimination Act 
of 1975 and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, by expanding the definition of 
the terms “programs or activities” to include all of the programs or activities of the 
Federal-aid recipients, sub-recipients and contractors, whether such programs or activities 
are Federally funded or not); 

• Titles II and III of the Americans with Disabilities Act, which prohibit discrimination on 
the basis of disability in the operation of public entities, public and private transportation 
systems, places of public accommodation, and certain testing entities (42 U.S.C. §§ 
12131 -- 12189) as implemented by Department of Transportation regulations at 49 
C.F.R. parts 37 and 38; 

• The Federal Aviation Administration’s Non-discrimination statute (49 U.S.C. § 47123) 
(prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, and sex); 

• Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority 
Populations and Low-Income Populations, which ensures non-discrimination against 
minority populations by discouraging programs, policies, and activities with 
disproportionately high and adverse human health or environmental effects on minority 
and low-income populations; 

• Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English 
Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin discrimination includes 
discrimination because of limited English proficiency (LEP).  To ensure compliance with 
Title VI, you must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have meaningful 
access to your programs (70 Fed. Reg. at 74087 to 74100); 

• Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, which prohibits you from 
discriminating because of sex in education programs or activities (20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq). 

110

ITEM 8.



111

ITEM 9.



112

ITEM 9.



113

ITEM 9.



114

ITEM 9.



115

ITEM 9.



116

ITEM 9.



117

ITEM 9.



118

ITEM 9.



119

ITEM 9.



120

ITEM 9.



121

ITEM 9.



122

ITEM 9.



123

ITEM 9.



124

ITEM 9.



125

ITEM 9.



126

ITEM 9.



127

ITEM 9.



128

ITEM 9.



129

ITEM 9.



130

ITEM 9.



131

ITEM 9.



132

ITEM 9.



133

ITEM 9.



134

ITEM 10.



135

ITEM 10.



136

ITEM 10.



137

ITEM 10.



138

ITEM 10.



139

ITEM 10.



140

ITEM 10.



141

ITEM 10.



142

ITEM 10.



143

ITEM 10.



144

ITEM 10.



145

ITEM 10.



146

ITEM 10.



147

ITEM 10.



148

ITEM 10.



149

ITEM 10.



150

ITEM 10.



151

ITEM 10.



152

ITEM 10.



153

ITEM 11.



DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 

Information Systems Division 
 

 TO: Mayor Jim Brown and City Council Members 

 FROM: Julie Sorensen, Information Systems Manager 

 DATE: October 1, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Backup and Recovery System Upgrade 

 

Our current backup and recovery system is four years old and is no longer able to fulfill 
our data retention requirements.  The addition of the cameras on College Hill and the 
growth of our data as an organization have forced us to make the difficult decision to not 
back up certain data because we have no room to hold the backup in our current 
system.  Even with that we are still running at a 90% threshold of our storage.  We 
discussed our situation with a Dell EMC Rep and he suggested with our system being 
the age it is and nearing the end of an existing maintenance agreement, the best 
solution would be to invest in a newer system that would allow more flexibility for 
growth.  
 
Originally we had budgeted to upgrade the system in Fiscal Year 2023, but the cost of 
renewing our maintenance and buying additional storage for our existing system over a 
three year time frame would be approximately $30,000 more. Therefore, we believe the 
best decision is to move forward with the upgrade and use Data Processing Cash 
Reserves to fund this purchase.    
 
Dell EMC gave us a quote and we worked with IP Pathways for a quote.     We have 
included a summary of these bids below:  
 
Vendor Cost Notes 

IP Pathways $116,277.89 Includes 3 year of support 

Dell EMC $122,156.09 Includes 3 year of support, quote had 

TBD for data migration, buyback 

program has expired. 

  

Based on the solutions provided by both vendors we recommend the IP Pathways, it is 
a slightly lower bid.   
 
If you have any questions or concerns regarding this purchase, please feel free to 
contact me at 268-5111. 

154

ITEM 12.



1 

   CEDAR FALLS DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
  4600 S. MAIN STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor and Council 

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Director/Chief of Police 

Date:  October 1, 2019 

Re: Cameras for Downtown 

We have received cost estimates for the installation of cameras in the Downtown area. 
These estimates include costs of the cameras from Inteconnex, additional hardware 
from the City’s IT department and costs from Cedar Falls Utilities to wire those cameras 
and to add lighting in some of the areas. 

We had solicited pricing from four companies for the College Hill cameras and selected 
Inteconnex. We have selected Inteconnex for the Downtown project as they have the 
software system set up at the Public Safety Building, the College Hill cameras and we 
will have the same camera system for ease of operation and maintenance. 

We did require an insurance certificate from Inteconnex for the College Hill project and 
will require the same insurance requirements for Downtown. 

The system is considerably higher quality than our current Downtown cameras. The 
cameras also have a tracking feature in which we can track movements and locations of 
individuals and vehicles. 

We do have a cost estimate from Inteconnex of $60,162.38. It is difficult to tell what the 
exact costs will be from CFU concerning the fiber lines and lighting as the Downtown 
streetscape project will affect some of the installation and lighting requirements. The 
Inteconnex estimate of $60,162.38 will most likely change as we examine the Downtown 
needs more closely. We are asking for total funding not to exceed $290,000 so that we 
may begin the project. The cost of the College Hill Project was $244,866.82 

I am asking for approval to move ahead with this project at a cost not to exceed 
$290,000. 

155

ITEM 13.



156

ITEM 14.



157

ITEM 14.



158

ITEM 14.



159

ITEM 14.



160

ITEM 14.



161

ITEM 15.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

 
City of Cedar Falls  
220 Clay Street  
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613   
www.cedarfalls.com  

 
Administration Division  Planning & Community Services Division 

Phone: 319-273-8600  Fax: 319-273-8610 
 

Engineering Division  Inspection Services Division 
Phone: 319-268-5161  Fax: 319-268-5197 

 
Water Reclamation Division 

Phone: 319-273-8633  Fax: 319-268-5566 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Terra Ray, Engineer Tech II 

 DATE: October 1, 2019 

 SUBJECT: W. 1st Street Reconstruction Project  
  Project # RC-000-3118 
  State Project # STP-57-2(28)-2C-07 
 
The City of Cedar Falls is working with the Iowa Department of Transportation on the 
reconstruction to W. 1st Street from Hudson Road to the Center/Franklin Street intersection. The 
project is in the final design phase, acquisitions of the necessary right of way needs are 
underway to meet the DOT and City’s funding years for construction. The road construction will 
take place in 2019-2020. This project includes a total reconstruction of the roadway from a four 
lane to a five lane facility. The project identifies the need for total acquisitions from three (3) 
properties and partial acquisitions from 68 properties. 
 
Attached is the Claim for Relocation Reimbursement for Parcel 2, 6, 7, 26, 27 and 74. Staff 
recommends that the City Council state their support in approving the Claim for Relocation 
Reimbursements. 
 
 
 
 
xc: Stephanie Sheetz, Director 
 Chase Schrage, Director 
 David Sturch, Planner III 
  

162

ITEM 16.



163

ITEM 16.



164

ITEM 16.



165

ITEM 16.



166

ITEM 16.



167

ITEM 16.



168

ITEM 16.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council  
 
 FROM: Terra Ray, Engineer Tech II 
 
 DATE: October 2, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: Parking Management System 
  Contract Documents 
 
As you may recall the City of Cedar Falls had a Downtown District and College Hill 
District parking study completed by our consultant WGI. The council approved the 
recommendations in the studies and City staff is now implementing the parking 
management technology. On July 15, 2019 the City sought responses to a Request for 
Proposal (RFP) from qualified vendors. The comprehensive integrated parking 
management system was able to be fulfilled by IPS Group Inc. Attached for your 
approval are the Form of Contract and Certificates of Insurance with IPS Group Inc., for 
the Parking Management System. 
 
The City staff recommends approving and executing the contract with IPS Group Inc., 
for the Parking Management System. This comprehensive integrated parking 
management system consists of the following components: Pay by plate multi space 
meter (7 pay stations) hardware and system; mobile payment system; parking 
enforcement citation equipment; citation processing and collections management 
system; permit management system.  
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
 
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance and Business Operations 
 Jacque Danielsen, City Clerk 
  
 

169

ITEM 17.



170

ITEM 17.



171

ITEM 17.



172

ITEM 17.



173

ITEM 17.



174

ITEM 17.



175

ITEM 17.



176

ITEM 17.



177

ITEM 17.



178

ITEM 17.



179

ITEM 17.



180

ITEM 17.



181

ITEM 17.



182

ITEM 17.



183

ITEM 17.



184

ITEM 17.



185

ITEM 17.



186

ITEM 17.



187

ITEM 17.



188

ITEM 17.



189

ITEM 17.



190

ITEM 17.



191

ITEM 17.



192

ITEM 17.



193

ITEM 17.



194

ITEM 17.



195

ITEM 17.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: October 2, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: Fiber Optic License Agreement 
   Aureon Network Services 
   Cedar Falls High School 
 
 
Enclosed is a proposed License Agreement between the City of Cedar Falls and Aureon 
Network Services to install an additional long distance telecommunications system 
consisting of fiber optic cable within the public right-of way of the City, in order to extend 
services to the Cedar Falls High School located at 1015 Division Street.  
 
The City of Cedar Falls has entered into previous license agreements with Iowa 
Network Services, now Aureon Network Services. The proposed License Agreement 
follows the terms and conditions set forth in the earlier agreements and is intended to 
protect the City of Cedar Falls right-of way and manage and regulate in a manner 
consistent with federal and state law. 
 
The Engineering Division recommends your approval of this proposed License 
Agreement. 
 
 
 
 
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 

196

ITEM 18.



197

ITEM 18.



198

ITEM 18.



199

ITEM 18.



200

ITEM 18.



201

ITEM 18.



202

ITEM 18.



203

ITEM 18.



204

ITEM 18.



205

ITEM 18.



206

ITEM 18.



207

ITEM 18.



EXHIBIT "A" 

 

Description of Route of Aureon (INS) System 

The facility shall consist of one (1) two (2") inch diameter High-Density Polyethylene (HDPE) duct with 96 
count fiber cable installed at minimum depths of: sixty (60”) inches below public roadways, forty-eight (48”) 
inches below private driveways, twenty-four (24”) inches below public storm sewers and public culverts, and 
forty-two (42”) inch “plan depths” in grassed areas. The service being provided is a Long-Distance 
Telecommunication System to connect to Ethernet with service owned by Cedar Falls Community Schools. 
The route of the facility shall be as follows: 

In general terms, within the south and north right-of-way of W 12
th
 Street and west right-of-way of S. 

Division Street and more particularly as follows: 

1. The facility shall begin at the Licensee's proposed hand-hole over an existing 2” HDPE conduit located in 
the south right-of- way of W. 12

th
 Street at a point being twenty-eight (28’) feet southerly of the centerline of 

W. 12
th
 Street at the W. 12

th
 St. Sta. 13+02 as shown on sheet "2 of 4", Project No. 1905225", Exhibit B, a 

copy of which is attached to this Exhibit A. 

2. Thence north sixty-one (61’) to Sta. 13+02, 33’ Lt. of the centerline of the W. 12
th
 Street alignment @ 60” 

min. depth, below a line between the top of curbs and sidewalk and being Sta. 0+61, 31’ Lt. of a S. Division 
Street north-south alignment at 20’ east of the west back of curb as shown on sheet “2 of 4” of said Exhibit 
B. This north-south chosen base alignment is not at the centerline of the overall S. Division Street right of 
way.  

3. Thence north twenty (20’) feet to Sta. 1+25, 31’ Lt., transitioning from a 60” min. depth to a 42” min. plan 
depth as shown on sheet “2 of 4” of said Exhibit B. 

4. Thence north two hundred sixty-seven (267’) feet to Sta. 2+95, 31’ Lt. @ 42” min. plan depth as shown on 
sheet “2 of 4” of said Exhibit B. 

5. Thence north seventy-three (73’) feet to Sta. 3+68, 31’ Lt. transitioning from 42” min. depth to a 60” min. 
plan depth as shown on sheets “2 of 4” of said Exhibit B. 

6. Thence north forty (40’) feet to Sta. 4+08, 31’ Lt. @ 60” min. plan depth as shown on sheet “2 of 4” of said 
Exhibit B. 

7. Thence north fifty-seven (57’) feet to Sta. 4+65, 31’ Lt. transitioning from 60” min. plan depth to 48” min. 
plan depth.  

8. Thence north twenty-nine (29’) feet to Sta. 4+94, 31’ Lt. transitioning from 48” min. plan depth to 42” min. 
plan depth to a proposed hand-hole as shown on sheet “2 of 4” of said Exhibit B.  

9. Thence west two (2’) feet to the west right of way line of S. Division Street. The total facility horizontal length 
in City right-of-way is four hundred and ninetysix (496’) feet and five hundred  (500’) when including 
estimated vertical and or curved alignment section lengths. 

 

208

ITEM 18.



209

ITEM 18.



210

ITEM 18.



211

ITEM 18.



212

ITEM 18.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: October 2, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: Fiber Optic License Agreement 
   Aureon Network Services 
   Fareway, 214 Magnolia Drive 
 
 
Enclosed is a proposed License Agreement between the City of Cedar Falls and Aureon 
Network Services to install an additional long distance telecommunications system 
consisting of fiber optic cable within the public right-of way of the City, in order to extend 
services to Fareway located at 214 Magnolia Drive.  
 
The City of Cedar Falls has entered into previous license agreements with Iowa 
Network Services, now Aureon Network Services. The proposed License Agreement 
follows the terms and conditions set forth in the earlier agreements and is intended to 
protect the City of Cedar Falls right-of way and manage and regulate in a manner 
consistent with federal and state law. 
 
The Engineering Division recommends your approval of this proposed License 
Agreement. 
 
 
 
 
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 

213

ITEM 19.



214

ITEM 19.



215

ITEM 19.



216

ITEM 19.



217

ITEM 19.



218

ITEM 19.



219

ITEM 19.



220

ITEM 19.



221

ITEM 19.



222

ITEM 19.



223

ITEM 19.



224

ITEM 19.



Revised 9/9/2019 

EXHIBIT “A” 

Description of Route of Aureon (INS) System 

 

 The facility shall consist of one (1) two (2”) inch diameter High-Density Polyethylene (HDPE) duct 

with fiber cable installed at the minimum depths of forty-two (42”) inches in grassed areas, forty-eight 

(48”) inches undercrossing driveways and sidewalks, and sixty (60”) inches undercrossing streets. The 

service being provided is a Long Distance Telecommunication System to connect to Ethernet with 

service owned by Fareway Stores Inc. The route of the facility shall be as follows: 

Westerly and Easterly Right-of-Way of Magnolia Drive   

 1. The facility shall begin at the Licensee’s east property line and being the west right-of- 

way of Magnolia Drive at a point being forty (40’) feet west of the centerline of Magnolia Drive at Sta. 

102+61 and being approximately three hundred ninety eight (398’) feet north of the centerline of the 

Crescent Drive and Magnolia Drive intersection, as shown on sheet “2 of 3”, Project No. 1907336”, a 

copy of which is attached to this exhibit. 

 2. Thence easterly crossing Magnolia Drive a distance of sixty three (63’) feet to Sta. 

102+61, 23’ Lt., to a proposed new Aureon hand-hole over existing 2” HDPE conduit in the easterly right 

of way of Magnolia Drive as shown on said exhibit. (Total facility horizontal length in City right-of-way is 

sixty three (63’) feet and sixty five (65’) when including estimated vertical and or curved alignment 

section lengths.) 

  

225

ITEM 19.



226

ITEM 19.



227

ITEM 19.



228

ITEM 19.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: October 2, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: Maintenance and Repair Agreement  
  Post-Construction Stormwater Management Plan 
  Gateway Business Park, Inc.  
 
 
 
The Post-Construction Stormwater Control Ordinance requires a formal maintenance 
and repair agreement for the stormwater management plan. The Maintenance and 
Repair Agreement will require the benefited property to undergo, at a minimum, an 
annual inspection and to maintain records of installation, maintenance and repair 
activities of the stormwater control devices. The agreement will also create an 
easement for the City to inspect and repair the stormwater control devices if the 
property owners fail or refuse to meet the requirements of the Maintenance and Repair 
Agreement. The Maintenance and Repair Agreement is attached for your review.  
 
The Engineering Division has reviewed the stormwater management plan and 
Maintenance and Repair Agreement for Gateway Business Park , Inc. located at the 
northeast corner of Hudson Road and W Ridgeway Avenue and finds it in accordance 
with City Code. The Engineering Division recommends the agreement be accepted by 
the City Council and recorded at the Black Hawk County Recorder’s Office.  
 
 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 

229

ITEM 20.



230

ITEM 20.



231

ITEM 20.



232

ITEM 20.



233

ITEM 20.



234

ITEM 20.



235

ITEM 20.



236

ITEM 20.



237

ITEM 20.



238

ITEM 20.



239

ITEM 20.



240

ITEM 20.



241

ITEM 20.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Ben Claypool, Civil Engineer II, PhD, EI 
 
 DATE: October 4th, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: Maintenance and Repair Agreement  
  Post-Construction Stormwater Management Plan 
  Sands Addition 
  Lot 6 of Prairie Springs U.M.C. Minor Plat 
 
 
The Post-Construction Stormwater Control Ordinance requires a formal maintenance 
and repair agreement for the stormwater management plan. The Maintenance and 
Repair Agreement will require the benefited property to undergo, at a minimum, an 
annual inspection and to maintain records of installation, maintenance and repair 
activities of the stormwater control devices. The agreement will also create an 
easement for the City to inspect and repair the stormwater control devices if the 
property owners fail or refuse to meet the requirements of the Maintenance and Repair 
Agreement. The Maintenance and Repair Agreement is attached for your review.  
 
The Engineering Division has reviewed the stormwater management plan and 
Maintenance and Repair Agreement for the Sands Addition site, owned by James V. 
Sands located at Lot 6 of Prairie Springs U.M.C. Minor Plat and finds it in accordance 
with City Code. The Engineering Division recommends the agreement be accepted by 
the City Council and recorded at the Black Hawk County Recorder’s Office.  
 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, City Engineer 
 

242

ITEM 21.



243

ITEM 21.



244

ITEM 21.



245

ITEM 21.



246

ITEM 21.



247

ITEM 21.



248

ITEM 21.



249

ITEM 21.



250

ITEM 21.



251

ITEM 21.



252

ITEM 21.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Ben Claypool, Civil Engineer II, PhD, EI 
 
 DATE: October 4th, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: Maintenance and Repair Agreement  
  Post-Construction Stormwater Management Plan 
  Air King Filtration 
  Lot 16 and Track “B”, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase IV 
 
 
The Post-Construction Stormwater Control Ordinance requires a formal maintenance 
and repair agreement for the stormwater management plan. The Maintenance and 
Repair Agreement will require the benefited property to undergo, at a minimum, an 
annual inspection and to maintain records of installation, maintenance and repair 
activities of the stormwater control devices. The agreement will also create an 
easement for the City to inspect and repair the stormwater control devices if the 
property owners fail or refuse to meet the requirements of the Maintenance and Repair 
Agreement. The Maintenance and Repair Agreement is attached for your review.  
 
The Engineering Division has reviewed the stormwater management plan and 
Maintenance and Repair Agreement for the Air King Filtration site, owned by Tjaden 
Properties, L.L.C. located at Lot 16 and Track “B”, West Viking Road Industrial Park 
Phase IV and finds it in accordance with City Code. The Engineering Division 
recommends the agreement be accepted by the City Council and recorded at the Black 
Hawk County Recorder’s Office.  
 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, City Engineer 
 

253

ITEM 22.



254

ITEM 22.



255

ITEM 22.



256

ITEM 22.



257

ITEM 22.



258

ITEM 22.



259

ITEM 22.



260

ITEM 22.



261

ITEM 22.



262

ITEM 22.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Iris Lehmann, AICP, Planner II 

 DATE: October 2, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Sign review of property in the Central Business District Overlay 
 

 
REQUEST: 

 
New signage on façade 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Eagle View Partners, Andy’s Bike Shop;  Contractor: Signs by Tomorrow 

LOCATION: 
 

100 E 2nd Street, Suite 105 

CASE #: DR19-010 
 

 
PROPOSAL  
A new tenant, Andy’s Bike Shop, and the property owner of 100 E 2nd Street are requesting a 
site plan review for a new projecting sign at 100 E 2nd Street, Suite 105 in the Central Business 
District Overlay Zoning District. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The petitioner proposes to install one new projecting 
sign on the facade of 100 E 2nd Street for a new 
business, Andy’s Bike Shop, locating in Suite 105. 
The property is located directly east of the 200 block 
of Main Street on the north side of E 2nd Street, see 
image to the right. 
 
This item requires review by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission and the City Council due to the fact that 
this property is located within the Central Business 
District (Section 26-189). The downtown district 
requires a building site plan review (i.e. design review) 
for any “substantial improvement” to an exterior 
façade, including new signs and awnings. A substantial improvement to properties in the Central 
Business District Overlay is defined in Section 26-189 (f) and reads as follows: 
 

"Substantial improvement" includes any new building construction within the overlay 

263

ITEM 23.



district or any renovation of an existing structure that involves any modification of the 
exterior appearance of the structure by virtue of adding or removing exterior windows or 
doors or altering the color or exterior materials of existing walls. All facade improvements, 
changes, alterations, modifications or replacement of existing facade materials will be 
considered a substantial improvement. Included in this definition are any new, modified or 
replacement awning structures or similar material extensions over the public sidewalk 
area. A substantial improvement also includes any increase or decrease in existing 
building height and/or alteration of the existing roof pitch or appearance.” 
  

Typically signage is not part of the review process unless the review is mandated by the 
Ordinance. In this case, when a new projecting sign is installed that overhangs the public right-
of-way the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council must review and approve the 
request. Not all signs are reviewed in this manner. If a sign or projecting sign is simply replaced, 
review of this level is not triggered and a permit can be issued with only staff level review. 
 
ANALYSIS 
The applicant is proposing to install a new aluminum 
projecting sign on suite 105 of 100 E 2nd Street to advertise 
the new tenant, Andy’s Bike Shop. The projecting sign is  
approximately 3’ wide by 1’ tall. Projecting signs within the 
Central Business District cannot exceed 40 square feet per 
sign face (Section 26-189 (j)). The districts signage size 
requirements have been met. The projecting sign will be 
placed on the south elevation facing E 2nd Street above the 
store entrance. The sign will be lighted. All projecting signs 
within the Central Business District are required to be at 
least 10 feet above the sidewalk and cannot project further 
than half the width of the sidewalk that the storefront is 
located on or five feet, whichever is less (Section 26-189 
(j)(2)). The proposed projecting sign projects about 3’ feet 
into the right-of-way and has an approximate 10 foot 
clearance above the sidewalk. The sidewalk at this location 
is approximately 10 feet wide. The proposed placement of 

the sign meets city code. If the City Council approves this 
request, a sign permit will be issued for the new signs.  
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
No comments. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Planning & Zoning Commission and Community 
Development Department recommend approval of the submitted facade plan for 100 E 2nd 
Street, Suite 105. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion/Vote 
9/25/2019 

Planner Lehmann presented the request to the Planning & Zoning 
Commission. There were no questions or comments. The proposal was 
unanimously approved by the Commission. 

 

264

ITEM 23.



265

ITEM 23.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

 

   

 

 

 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Iris Lehmann, AICP, Planner II 

 DATE: October 2, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Sign review of property in the Central Business District Overlay 
 

 
REQUEST: 

 
New signage on façade 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Ivan Weiland, Horny Toad American Bar & Grill;  Contractor: Nagle Signs 

LOCATION: 
 

202 Main Street 

CASE #: DR19-009 
 

 
PROPOSAL  
The property owner of 202 Main Street, Horny Toad American Bar & Grill, is requesting a site 
plan review for a new wall sign and projecting sign at 202 Main Street in the Central Business 
District Overlay Zoning District. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The petitioner proposes to install one new wall 
sign and one new projecting sign on the E 2nd 
Street facade of 202 Main Street. The signage 
would mark the side entrance into the building. 
The property is located directly east of the 200 
block of Main Street on the south side of E 2nd 
Street, see image to the right.  
 
This item requires review by the Planning and 
Zoning Commission and the City Council due to 
the fact that this property is located within the 
Central Business District (Section 26-189). The 
downtown district requires a building site plan 
review (i.e. design review) for any “substantial improvement” to an exterior façade, including 
new signs and awnings. A substantial improvement to properties in the Central Business District 
Overlay is defined in Section 26-189 (f) and reads as follows: 
 

"Substantial improvement" includes any new building construction within the overlay 
266

ITEM 24.



district or any renovation of an existing structure that involves any modification of the 
exterior appearance of the structure by virtue of adding or removing exterior windows or 
doors or altering the color or exterior materials of existing walls. All facade improvements, 
changes, alterations, modifications or replacement of existing facade materials will be 
considered a substantial improvement. Included in this definition are any new, modified or 
replacement awning structures or similar material extensions over the public sidewalk 
area. A substantial improvement also includes any increase or decrease in existing 
building height and/or alteration of the existing roof pitch or appearance.” 
  

Typically signage is not part of the review process unless the review is mandated by the 
Ordinance. In this case, when a new projecting sign is installed that overhangs the public right-
of-way the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council must review and approve the 
request. Not all signs are reviewed in this manner. If a sign or projecting sign is simply replaced, 
review of this level is not triggered and a permit can be issued with only staff level review. 
 
ANALYSIS 
The applicant is proposing to install a new aluminum projecting 
sign and wall sign above the north side entrance of 202 Main 
Street advertising the current tenant, Horny Toad American Bar & 
Grill. The projecting sign is approximately 2’9’’ wide by 7’ tall. The 
wall sign is approximately five and a half feet wide and half a foot 
tall. Projecting signs within the Central Business District cannot 
exceed 40 square feet per sign face and wall signs cannot exceed 
ten percent of the total storefront area (Section 26-189 (j)). The 
districts signage size requirements have been met. Both proposed 
signs will be placed on the north elevation facing E 2nd Street. 
Both signs will be lighted. All projecting signs within the Central 
Business District are required to be at least 10 feet above the 
sidewalk and cannot project further than half the width of the 
sidewalk that the storefront is located on or five feet, whichever is 
less (Section 26-189 (j)(2)). The proposed projecting sign projects 
about 2’9’’ feet into the right-of-way and has an approximate 12 
foot clearance above the sidewalk. The sidewalk at this location is 
approximately 10 feet wide. The proposed placement of the signs 
meets city code. If the City Council approves this request, a sign 
permit will be issued for the new signs.  
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
No comments. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Planning & Zoning Commission and the Community Development Department recommend 
approval of the submitted facade plan for 202 Main Street. 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

Discussion/Vote 
9/25/2019 

Planner Lehmann presented the request to the Planning and Zoning 
Commission. Mr. Hartley stated he feels the proposal adds a lot to that side 
of the building There were no other questions or comments. The proposal 
was unanimously approved by the Commission. 

 267

ITEM 24.



268

ITEM 24.



269

ITEM 24.



270

ITEM 24.



271

ITEM 24.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Iris Lehmann, AICP, Planner II 

 DATE: October 2, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Façade review of property in the Central Business District Overlay 
 

 
REQUEST: 

 
Request to approve a Central Business District Overlay Site Plan for new 
facade treatments and use change at 203/205 Main Street 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Owner: Brad Leeper 

LOCATION: 
 

CASE #: 
 

203/205 Main Street  
 
DR19-008 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
The new owner of 203/205 Main Street is requesting a site plan review to redevelop the façade 
of the building and convert what was the rehearsal space and museum for the CF Municipal 
Band into two residential apartments. The property is located in the Central Business District 
Overlay. See current and proposed facade images below. The proposed floor plans of the 
building are attached. 
 
 
  
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Proposed 

Current Proposed 

272

ITEM 25.



BACKGROUND 
203-205 Main Street was originally constructed in the1880’s. During the historic inventory of the 
downtown conducted in 2015 it was found that this building is noncontributing to the Cedar Falls 
Downtown Historic District due to the significant modifications that have been made to the 
façade. 
 
This property is located within the C-3, Commercial District Zone (Section 26-172) and is also 
subject to the Central Business District Overlay regulations (Section 26-189). In this zone, any 
“substantial improvement” to an exterior façade, including removing exterior windows and the 
addition of new awnings, requires design review by the Planning and Zoning Commission and 
City Council. A substantial improvement to properties in the Central Business District Overlay is 
defined in Section 26-189 (f) and reads as follows: 
 

"Substantial improvement" includes any new building construction within the overlay 
district or any renovation of an existing structure that involves any modification of the 
exterior appearance of the structure by virtue of adding or removing exterior windows or 
doors or altering the color or exterior materials of existing walls. All facade improvements, 
changes, alterations, modifications or replacement of existing facade materials will be 
considered a substantial improvement. Included in this definition are any new, modified or 
replacement awning structures or similar material extensions over the public sidewalk 
area. A substantial improvement also includes any increase or decrease in existing 
building height and/or alteration of the existing roof pitch or appearance.” 

 
In addition, the Central Business District requires that any new residential uses within the district 
are only allowable subject to planning and zoning commission and city council review and 
approval (Section 26-172 (c)(2)). Although residential uses are encouraged to be established in 
upper levels of downtown commercial buildings and this particular building has seen a number 
of uses in its upper floor over the years, the change from what was the rehearsal space and 
museum into two residential apartments needs to be reviewed under current code requirements.  
  
ANALYSIS 
Following is an evaluation of the proposed changes according to the review standards in the 
Central Business District Overlay Zone: 
 
1.  Proportion: This criterion takes into account 

the relationship of the proposed horizontal 
elements (such as cornice lines, awnings and 
canopies) and vertical elements (such as 
windows and doors) with the elements of 
adjacent buildings. The applicant is 
proposing to demo a portion of the existing 
façade to make room for large storefront 
windows, install the original window openings 
on the second level, add new trim, and a 
masonry veneer, see image to the right. 
These changes are consistent with the 
historic storefront design elements present 
on other buildings on Main Street and with 
best practice. The proportions of the 
proposed windows and doors are consistent 

273

ITEM 25.



with those in the district and neighboring buildings. The placement of the proposed sign 
band, above the storefront windows, and trim align with the horizontal elements of the 
neighboring buildings.  Criterion is met. 

 
2. Roof shape, pitch and direction: The building’s roof is not being altered. However, the 

applicant is proposing to finish the top of the wall with a decorative cornice, which is 
consistent with many of the other intact historic buildings along Main Street. This criterion  
is met.  

 
3.  Pattern: The pattern of solid surfaces and openings needs to be considered in the alteration 

of a building.  The applicant is proposing to demo a portion of the existing façade to make 
room for large storefront windows and to install the original window openings on the second 
level. This pattern is consistent with the character of the storefronts along Main Street and 
brings the building closer to its historical design. Large windows with transom windows 
above are desirable for storefronts, as they maximize light and views into the interior of the 
store. Criterion is met. 

 
4.  Building Composition: The proposed design must provide visual interest and visually break 

up long building walls. Buildings with a width of 50 or more feet are required to provide 
additional details such as breaks in the building wall plane. This structure is 44 feet wide; the 
requirement to provide breaks in the wall plane is not required. The mullions proposed in the 
storefront windows and the spacing of the proposed upstairs windows creates proportional 
visual breaks in the façade. Criterion is met.  

 
5. Windows and transparencies: The CBD requires that new construction have a minimum of 70 

percent of the storefront area, between two and ten feet in height above the ground level, 
consist of clear and transparent storefront windows. Modifications to existing storefronts can 
maintain or expand their transparency percentage but cannot decrease. The proposed 
change would open up the storefront of the building to at least 70% transparency, meeting 
the requirement for new construction. Installing windows on the second floor adds additional 
transparency. The proposed windows will be clear and non-reflective.  Criterion is met.  

 
6. Materials and textures: For new construction certain amounts of high quality materials must 

be used. This includes the requirement that 50% of the façade be brick, stone, or terra cotta 
on street-facing facades. The proposed redesign of 203 Main Street would add a thin brick 
veneer over the top half of the façade with glass, smooth- faced painted cement board, and 
aluminum comprising the bottom half. The applicant has indicated that full wythe brick is not 
possible in this instance given the existing condition of the building wall. The proposed 
materials are in keeping with buildings in the district and meet the material requirements of 
this section. Criterion is met.  

 
7. Color: The proposed design utilizes a brown-red brick veneer that is complementary and 

consistent with the red earth-toned brick on other buildings in the vicinity.  The painted 
cement board and aluminum will be a grey/black. The proposed colors are neutral and 
compatible with the existing colors of the district. Criterion is met. 

 
8.  Architectural features: Architectural features including but not limited to cornices, 

entablatures, doors, windows, shutters, fanlights and other elements prevailing in the area 
shall be considered in the construction or alteration of a building. The proposed new 
windows, sign band, trim (including the installation of a cornice), are all elements that are 

274

ITEM 25.



consistent with the district and add interest to the building. Criterion is met. 
 
9. Building entries: The entries into this building are not changing; this criterion does not 

apply for this review. 
 
 10. Exterior mural wall drawings, painted artwork, exterior painting: No mural is being proposed; 

this criterion does not apply for this review. 
 
11. Signage: As a tenant for the storefront has not yet been 

found, the applicant is proposing a wall and projecting sign 
that will act as a placeholder for a future tenant. The 
proposed wall sign will be placed within the proposed 
building sign band located above the transom windows and 
the projecting sign is elevated above the store entrance and 
will be designed to meet code size and clearance 
standards.  Wall signs within the CBD cannot exceed ten 
percent of the total storefront area and all projecting signs 
shall not exceed 40 square feet per sign face (Section 26-
189 (j)). The dimensions of these signs meet the code size 
requirements. In addition, all projecting signs within the CBD 
are required to be at least 10 feet above the sidewalk and 
cannot project further than half the width of the sidewalk that 
the storefront is located on or five feet, whichever is less 
(Section 26-189 (j)(2)). The shown projecting sign meets 
these requirements. When a tenant is found, and as long as what they propose follows what 
is shown, only a staff level review would be required. However, if future tenant signage 
differs greatly from what is shown here review and approval by both the Planning and Zoning 
Commission and City Council would be required. Criterion is met.  

 
12. Use: The second phase of this proposed project will entail converting what was the 

rehearsal space and museum for the CF Municipal Band into two residential apartments. 
Both proposed apartments will have two bedrooms, see attached floor plan. The change of 
use from non-residential to residential requires review and approval by the Planning and 
Zoning Commission and City Council. Residential uses are permitted and encouraged to be 
established on upper levels of downtown commercial buildings. This proposed change in use 
would be in keeping with the intent of the code and appropriate for a Main Street building.  

  
 A change in use triggers review of parking requirements. Apartments require: “two parking 

spaces per dwelling unit, plus one additional parking space for each bedroom in each 
dwelling unit in excess of two 
bedrooms” (Sec. 26-220 
(b)(12)(ii)). A building with two, 
two bedroom apartments 
requires four parking spaces. 
The building currently has four 
parking spaces off the alley along 
the back of the property (two 
stacked spaces). These four 
spaces will remain. Criterion is met.  

 

1 

2 3 

4 

275

ITEM 25.



TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
Staff has no technical comments. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Planning & Zoning Commission and Community Development Department recommend 
approval of the submitted proposal to redevelop the façade of 203/205 Main Street and convert 
what was the rehearsal space and museum for the CF Municipal Band into two, two bedroom 
residential apartments. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion/Vote 
9/25/2019 

Planner Lehmann presented the request to the Planning and Zoning 
Commission. Mr. Wingert stated that he feels the proposal is a great 
improvement to the property. Chair Holst agreed. The proposal was 
unanimously approved by the Commission. 

  
 

276

ITEM 25.



277

ITEM 25.



278

ITEM 25.



279

ITEM 25.



280

ITEM 25.



281

ITEM 25.



282

ITEM 25.



283

ITEM 25.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com  

 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

Administration Division 

  

  

 

 

  

 
 
  

 TO: Mayor Brown & City Council  

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: October 2, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Gateway Business Park, Holiday Inn – Final Occupancy Request 

 
 
The Final Plat for Gateway Business Park (Atul Patel) was approved by City Council 
June 4, 2018.  It included a contract for completion for the public improvements 
(including Cyber Lane, utilities, sidewalks & trails), performance bond and maintenance 
bond.  This allowed the City to issue a building permit on the first project in the 
subdivision: Holiday Inn & Bien Venu Event Center.  This is a typical approach in the 
City and is allowed by our Subdivision Code.   
 
In late September the developer requested occupancy of the Holiday Inn & Bien Venu 
Event Center.  All building code and site plan requirements were met, yet the 
challenges of fully constructing Cyber Lane have impacted the developer’s ability to 
complete street drainage connections.  In addition, the Hudson Road trail connection 
from the north edge of the Holiday Inn site north to Technology Drive needs to be 
completed.  Due to the unique circumstances with this project, staff felt it reasonable to 
issue occupancy permits. 
 
At this time, Council approval for occupancy of the Holiday Inn & Bien Venu Event 
Center (7400 Hudson Road) is requested.  This is permitted by the Subdivision Code, 
Section 24-54(e). 
 
 
CC:  David Wicke, City Engineer 
 Jamie Castle, Building Official 
 Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 

284

ITEM 26.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council  

 FROM: Iris Lehmann, AICP Planner II 

 DATE: October 2, 2019 

 SUBJECT: FY18-19 Community Development Block Grant and HOME Programs 
    Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER) 
 
The Community Development Department would like to request that a public hearing be held 
on Monday, November 4, 2019 regarding the above referenced project. The report contains 
the progress made on Community Development Block Grant funded activities from July 1, 
2018 through June 30, 2019.  
 
If you have any questions, please contact the Community Development Department. 
 
Xc:  Stephanie Sheetz, Community Development Director 
       Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 

285

ITEM 27.



RESOLUTION NO. _________ 
 

RESOLUTION SETTING DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING FOR CITIZEN 
COMMENT ON THE USE OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 

FUNDS BY THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 
ENDING JUNE 30, 2019 

 
WHEREAS, City staff has prepared and will be submitting to the U.S. 

Department of Housing and Urban Development the 2018-19 Consolidated Annual 

Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER) for the City's Community Development 

Block Grant Program; and 

WHEREAS, City staff has recommended to the City Council of the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa that said Council set a date of public hearing for citizens’ comments on the 

use of Community Development Block Grant funds for the year ending June 30, 2019; 

and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls has determined that said 

public hearing to consider said report be approved as provided by law. 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa that the date of public hearing for the 2018-2019 Consolidated Annual 

Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER) is hereby scheduled to be held on the 4th 

day of November, 2019, at 7:00 P.M. in the Council Chambers of the City Hall of the 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and that the City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to 

publish notice of said public hearing in the “Waterloo-Cedar Falls Courier” once, not less 

than fifteen (15) days nor more than twenty (20) days before the date of hearing.  

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 7th day of October, 2019. 

 
 

_____________________________________ 
James P. Brown, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

286

ITEM 27.



 
 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING FOR CITIZEN COMMENT ON THE USE OF 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT FUNDS BY THE CITY OF 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2019 

 
TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN: 
 
The City of Cedar Falls has prepared and will be submitting to the U.S. Department of 
Housing and Urban Development the 2018-19 Consolidated Annual Performance and 
Evaluation Report for the City's Community Development Block Grant Program.  The 
report contains the progress made on Community Development Block Grant funded 
activities from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019. 
 
The City of Cedar Falls will hold a public hearing for citizens’ comments on the use of 
Community Development Block Grant funds for the year ending June 30, 2019.  People 
wishing to comment on the report may attend the City Council meeting November 4, 
2019, at 7:00 p.m. at the City Hall, 220 Clay Street, or submit comments in writing prior 
to said meeting to the Cedar Falls City Clerk, address noted above.  Any person with a 
disability requiring special accommodations to attend the public hearing should notify 
Karen Howard at (319) 273-8600.  Every effort will be made to provide reasonable 
accommodation to those persons requesting it. This notice is also being published in 
Spanish for Persons with Limited English Proficiency. 
 
This report may be examined or copied at the City Clerk's Office or the Community 
Development Office, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA, 50613 during regular business 
hours, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, from the date of publication 
through the public hearing.   
 
This notice is given by order of the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 
 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
 

287

ITEM 27.



NOTIFICACIÓN DE AUDIENCIA PÚBLICA 
 

NOTIFICACIÓN DE AUDIENCIA PÚBLICA PARA RECIBIR COMENTARIOS DE 
CIUDADANOS ACERCA DEL USO DE SUBVENCIONES EN BLOQUE PARA EL 

DESARROLLO COMUNITARIO REALIZADO POR LA CIUDAD DE CEDAR FALLS, 
IOWA DURANTE EL AÑO FISCAL FINALIZADO EL 30 DE JUNIO DE 2019  

 
A QUIEN CORRESPONDA: 
 
La ciudad de Cedar Falls ha preparado el informe anual consolidado de desempeño y 
evaluación del año 2018-19 sobre el programa de subvenciones en bloque para el 
desarrollo comunitario de la ciudad y lo presentará al Departamento de Vivienda y 
Desarrollo Urbano de EE.UU. El informe identifica el progreso en actividades 
financiadas por el programa de subvenciones en bloque para el desarrollo comunitario 
desde el 1 de julio de 2018 hasta el 30 de junio de 2019. 
 
La ciudad de Cedar Falls llevará a cabo una audiencia pública para recibir comentarios 
del público acerca del uso de subvenciones en bloque para el desarrollo comunitario 
durante el año finalizado el 30 de junio de 2019. Aquellas personas interesadas en 
presentar comentarios acerca del informe podrán presenciar la reunión del 
ayuntamiento el 4 de noviembre de 2019 a las 7:00 pm en City Hall, ubicado en 220 
Clay Street, o enviar comentarios por escrito antes de dicha fecha dirigidos a la 
secretaria municipal de Cedar Falls, al domicilio ya mencionado. Si por motivos de 
discapacidad se necesita asistencia especial para presenciar la audiencia pública, se 
deberá notificar a Karen Howard llamando al (319) 273-8600. Se realizará el mayor 
esfuerzo a fin de proporcionar acomodaciones razonables a aquellas personas que lo 
soliciten. Esta notificación también se publicará en español para aquellas personas con 
dominio limitado del inglés.   
 
Este informe estará disponible para su revisión o copia en la oficina de la secretaria 
municipal o en la oficina de desarrollo comunitario, ubicadas en 220 Clay Street, Cedar 
Falls, IA, 50613, durante horas hábiles habituales, entre las 8:00 a.m. hasta las 5:00 
p.m. de lunes a viernes, desde la fecha de publicación hasta la fecha de la audiencia 
pública.  
 
Esta notificación se otorga por orden del ayuntamiento de la ciudad de Cedar Falls, 
Iowa.  
 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, Secretaria Municipal 
Ciudad de Cedar Falls, Iowa 
 
 
 

288

ITEM 27.



ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: September 20, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Partial Property Tax Exemption for Broadstone BCI Iowa, L.L.C. 
  2900 Capital Way in the Cedar Falls Industrial Park 
 
I would like to request that City Council set a date of public hearing for the above 
referenced project that was approved by a Development Agreement in August 2017.  
The requested date of public hearing will be October 21, 2019.  Additional information 
regarding the partial property tax exemption and project construction status will be 
provided to City Council prior to the public hearing. 
 
If you have any questions regarding this project, please feel free to contact me. 
 
xc:  Ron Gaines, P.E., City Administrator 
        
 
 
 

289

ITEM 28.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 (319) 273-8600 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

 

RESOLUTION SETTING PUBLIC HEARING AND DIRECTING PUBLICATION OF 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON A PROPOSED ORDINANCE GRANTING A 

PARTIAL PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION TO BROADSTONE BCI IOWA, L.L.C., FOR 

A NEW INDUSTRIAL USE WAREHOUSE AND PRODUCTION FACILITY 

CONSTRUCTED AT 2900 CAPITAL WAY, CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

 

 WHEREAS, a request was submitted by Broadstone BCI Iowa, L.L.C., to the City 

Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to adopt an Ordinance granting a partial property tax 

exemption to Broadstone BCI Iowa, L.L.C., in connection with an industrial use warehouse 

and production facility constructed at  2900 Capital Way, Cedar Falls, Iowa, and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that a public hearing should be 

scheduled on said request, and notice of said public hearing should be published as required 

by law. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

 

1. That the request of Broadstone BCI Iowa, L.L.C., to pass an Ordinance granting a 

partial property tax exemption to Broadstone BCI Iowa, L.L.C., in connection with an 

approximate 175,850 square foot industrial use warehouse and production facility 

constructed on property located at 2900 Capital Way, Cedar Falls, Iowa, legally 

described as: 

 

All of Lot 7, all of Lot 8, all of Lot 9 and the West eighty (80.00) feet in even width of 

Lot 6 in West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase III and all of Lot 7, all of Lot 8, all 

of Lot 9 and the West eighty (80.00) feet in even width of Lot 10 in West Viking Road 

Industrial Park Phase IV, all in the East one-half (1/2) of Section Thirty-four (34), 

Township Eighty-nine North (T89N), Range Fourteen West (R14W) in the City of 

Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa. Contains 16.16 acres, more or less, 

290

ITEM 28.



is hereby scheduled for public hearing to be held on the 21st day of October 2019, at 

7:00 p.m., in the Council Chambers in the City Hall of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; 

and 

 

2. That the City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to publish notice of said public 

hearing in the Waterloo-Cedar Falls Courier once, not less than four (4) nor more than 

twenty (20) days before the date of said hearing. 

 

 INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 7th day of October 2019. 

 

 

 

       ______________________________ 

       James P. Brown, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

  

291

ITEM 28.



CERTIFICATE 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA   ) 

     ) ss: 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ) 

 

I, Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereby 

certify that the above and foregoing is a true and correct typewritten copy of Resolution 

Number _______ duly and legally adopted by the City Council of said City on the 7th day of 

October, 2019. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto signed my name and affixed the official 

seal of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, this _______ day of _____________, 2019. 

 

   

 Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

  

 

 

 

292

ITEM 28.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: October 2, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: Updates to City Code Section 23-300 - Lawful Speed Limits Established 
 
 
 
The intended posted speed of the newly designed and constructed portion of Ridgeway 
Avenue from Iowa Highway 58 to Chancellor Drive is 35 mph to match the priorities and 
design for the Ridgeway Avenue Reconstruction Project. 
 
The Engineering Division is proposing changes to City Code Section 23-300 – Lawful 
Speed Limits Established so the code matches what has been designed and 
constructed. Please see the attached changes for City Code Section 23-300 – Lawful 
Speed Limits Established.  
 
The Engineering Division recommends approval of setting the speed limit to 35 mph on 
Ridgeway Avenue from Iowa Highway 58 to Hudson Road. 
 
If you have any questions or concerns, please feel free to ask.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, PE, City Engineer  

293

ITEM 29.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared By: Matthew Tolan, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, Phone: (319) 268-5161 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ______ 
 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING THE ENUMERATED SPEED LIMIT AS 35 
MILES PER HOUR ON RIDGEWAY AVENUE FROM HUDSON ROAD EAST 
TO IOWA HIGHWAY 58 IN SECTION 23-300, LAWFUL SPEED LIMITS 
ESTABLISHED, OF DIVISION 5, SPEED, OF ARTICLE III, OPERATION, OF 
CHAPTER 23, TRAFFIC AND MOTOR VEHICLES, OF THE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, BY (1) STRIKING 
SUBSECTION 12(S) THEREOF, AND ENACTING A NEW SUBSECTION 12(S) 
IN LIEU THEREOF; AND (2) ENACTING A NEW SUBSECTION (10)(W) 
THEREOF; AND (3) ENACTING A NEW SUBSECTION (12)(V) THEREOF. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 
 
Section 1. Subsection 12(s) , of Section 23-300, Lawful speed limits established, of 

Division 5, Speed, of Article III, Operation, of Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, is hereby 
amended by repealing said Subsection in its entirety and enacting in lieu thereof a new 
Subsection 12(s), as follows: 

 
Sec. 23-300. - Lawful speed limits established. 

Unless otherwise provided by this chapter or other city ordinances and appropriately 
posted, the speed limits established in this section shall be the lawful speed, and any speed in 
excess thereof shall be unlawful. 

[unchanged provisions omitted] 

 (12) 45 miles per hour. 45 miles per hour on any of the following streets as indicated: 
 

[unchanged provisions omitted] 
 

s.  Ridgeway Avenue, from Hudson Road west to the western city limits.. 
 

[unchanged provisions omitted] 
 
 

294

ITEM 29.



2 

 

 
Section 2.  Subsection 10, 35 miles per hour, of Section 23-300, Lawful speed limits 

established, of Division 5, Speed, of Article III, Operation, of Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor 
Vehicles, is hereby amended by adding the following Subsection (w): 

 
w.  Ridgeway Avenue, from Hudson Road east to Iowa Highway 58. 

 
 

Section 3.  Subsection 12, 45 miles per hour, of Section 23-300, Lawful speed limits 
established, of Division 5, Speed, of Article III, Operation, of Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor 
Vehicles, is hereby amended by adding the following Subsection (v): 

 
v.  Ridgeway Avenue, from Iowa Highway 58 east to the eastern city limits. 

 
 
 
 

 
INTRODUCED:     ____________    
 
PASSED 1st CONSIDERATION:   ____________    
 
PASSED 2nd CONSIDERATION:   ____________    
 
PASSED 3rd CONSIDERATION:   ____________    
 
ADOPTED:      ____________    
 
 

_____________________________ 
                                                                             James P. Brown, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

295

ITEM 29.


	Top
	1. Regular Meeting of September 16, 2019
	190916MINUTES

	2. Ord. 2954- 48 hour Parking
	2954-48 Hr Parking

	3. Ord. 2955-Rezoning A1 to R1
	2955-Rezoning A1 to R1-West Fork

	4. Ord. 2956-Monument Mailboxes
	2956-Mailboxes

	5. Committee of the Whole minutes from 9/16/19
	Comm of the Whole 09 16 19

	6. Monthly Report - August 2019
	Monthly Report - August 2019

	7. Liquor Licenses - 10/07/19
	Liquor Beer 10-7-19

	8. Title VI Agreement-IDOT
	1-council Title VI.mem
	3-Title VI Non-Discrimination Agreement (9-16-19)
	4-Title VI Standard Assurances 131023 - Copy

	9. Assessment-2040 Waterloo Rd
	Assessment Memo
	Supporting Docs-CC-2040 Waterloo Rd

	10. Assessment-929 Newman
	Assessment Memo
	Supporting Docs-CC-929 Newman Ave

	11. Downtown SSMID rate FY21
	SSMID rate

	12. Backup and Recovery System Upgrade
	Council Memo

	13. Downtown Cameras
	Downtown Cameras

	14. Cooperative Agreement - Use of Cedar Falls School Pools
	Cooperative Agreement for Pools

	15. Equipment Purchase - Bio Solids Hauler
	Bio Solids hauler CC memo 10 7 19pdf

	16. Relocation Claims-W 1st Street Acquisition
	1.council memo on w 1st street
	2.1229_001

	17. Parking Management System Contract
	1. Parking Management System Contract Memo
	2. Parking Contract

	18. Aureon Agreement - High School
	1. Memo Aureon High School
	2. Aureon Agreement - High School
	3. EXHIBIT A-REV-2019-7-10
	4. Exhibit B - Divison St-1015 Proj#1095225

	19. Aureon Agreemnt - Fareway at 214 Magnolia Drive
	1. Memo Aureon Fareway Magnolia
	2. Aureon Agreement - Fareway Magnolia
	3. EXHIBIT A-2019-7-19_
	4. Exhibit B - Final Plans Magnolia-214#1907336

	20. Gateway Business Park Maintenance and Repair Agreement
	1. Memo MRA Gateway Business Park
	2. MRA Gateway Business Park

	21. Maintenance & Repair Agreement - Sands Addition
	1. Memo MRA Sands Addition
	2. MRA - Sands Addition

	22. M&R - Tjaden Properties - Air King Filtration
	1. Memo MRA Air King Filtration
	2. MRA - Air King Filtration

	23. CBD Facade Review - 100 E 2nd Street new signage
	1. CC Staff report-Andy's Bike Shop
	2. proposal

	24. CBD Facade Review - new signage on 202 Main Street
	1.CC Staff report-Horny Toad (1)
	2. Supplimental materials

	25. CBD Facade and Site Plan Review - 203/205 Main Street
	1_CC Staff report 203 Main Street (1)
	2. Supplemental Materials

	26. Gateway Business Park, Holiday Inn – Final Occupancy Request
	Council-Occupancy permit request 10-7-19

	27. Set PH - CAPER18
	1. Memo to Council - Holding PH for CAPER 18
	Res-Set PH-CAPER
	3. Public Hearing Notice CAPER 18 (City)
	4. Public Hearing Spanish Translation

	28. Set PH-PPTE-Broadstone
	1_Memo to CC Setting PH on PPTE Ord 10-07-19
	2_Res-Set PH-PPTE-Broadstone BCI Iowa, LLC

	29. Ridgeway Ave Speed Limits Ordinance
	1. Ridgeway Speed Limits Ordinance Memo
	2. Ridgeway Ave Speed Limit Redline

	30. Allow Bills and Payroll of October 7, 2019
	Bottom

